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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
The Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Nineth Annual Report along with the Audited Accounts of the Company for
the year ended 31st March, 2015 together with the Auditors' Report and Comments on the accounts by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India (C&AG).

1.FINANCIALREVIEW

Your Company has achieved commendable financial performance in terms of turnover. During the FY 2014-15, your
Company has achieved the turnover of Rs. 455.81 Crores, registering an impressive growth of 31.64% over previous year.
Duringthe year FY 2014-15, your Company has achieved Profit after tax of Rs. 50.58 Crores.

The Financial results for the year ended March 31, 2015 are summarized below:

Particulars Forthe Year
2014-15 2013-14

(in Crores) (Zin Crores)
Net Sales 455.81 346.24
OtherIncome 341 1.11
Profit before Depreciation and Tax 92.47 91.29
Depreciation & Amortization of Expenses 14.58 8.80
Profit before Tax 77.89 82.49
Provision for Tax including deferred tax 27.31 28.39
Profit after Tax 50.58 54.10
Profit brought forward from previous years 72.59 30.94
Profit available for appropriation 123.17 85.04
APPROPRIATIONS
Interim Dividend 7.13 -
Proposed Final Dividend 3.04 10.64
Corporate Dividend Tax 2.04 1.81
Transferred to General Reserve/carried forward 110.91 72.59

Net worth per share has increased from %17.64 in 2013-14 to ¥21.67 in 2014-15 signifying sound return on investment
coupled with sizeable amount of profit ploughed back into the business.
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2. APPROPRIATIONS
DIVIDEND
Your Company is consistently distributing the dividend from FY 2011-12.

e The Board of Directors of your Company had earlier approved payment of an interim dividend @ 7.5% (Rs. 0.75 per
equity share) on equity share of Rs.10 each amounting to Rs. 7.13 Crores, which was paid in March, 2015. Further, the
Board has recommended payment of final dividend @ 3.15% (Rs. 0.32per equity share) on equity share of Rs.10 each
for 2014-15 amounting to Rs. 3.04 Crores.

e With this, the total dividend payment for the fiscal year 2014-15 will be 10.65%(Rs. 1.07per equity share) on equity
share of Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs. 10.17 Crores on its paid-up equity capital and dividend distribution tax of Rs. 2.04
Crores. The total dividend pay-outincluding corporate dividend tax accounts for 24.14% of Profit after Tax.

e The payment of dividend, after your approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, will be made in accordance
with the regulations applicable at that time.

3. TRANSFERTO RESERVES

The Company proposes to carry Rs. 110.91 Crores to the Reserves which is left after paying dividend of Rs. 12.21 Crores
(including Dividend Distribution tax) from net profits of Rs. 50.58 Crores.

4.FIXED DEPOSITS

We have not accepted any Deposits within the meaning and in excess of limits prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies acceptance of Deposits Rules, 2014, as such, no amount of principal or interest payment was outstanding
asonthe Balance Sheet date.

5. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013.

6.SHARE CAPITALAND FINANCIAL CLOSURE OF MAHARASHTRA NATURAL GAS LIMITED

e Duringtheyearunderreview, 4,75,00,000 Shares of IDFC Private Equity Fund II, IL&FS Trust Company Limited, PAN Asia
Infrastructure Asset Management Co. Pte Ltd and Axis Bank Limited was transferred to Indraprastha Gas Limited.
Board of Maharashtra Natural Gas Limited has accorded approval for the issuance of 50,00,000 shares on Right basis to
existing shareholders for Equity closure. Subsequent to opening the offer of Right issue, 50,00,000 shares were
allotted to Maharashtra Industrial Development Corporation Limited (MIDC) incontinuation with the earlier right Issue
to Existing Shareholders.

e Thus, with the allotment of equity share capital to MIDC, the paid-up and subscribed share capital of Maharashtra
Natural Gas Limited has beenincreased from Rs. 95 Crores to Rs. 100 Crores.

e Further to this, IDFC Private Equity Fund II, IL&FS Trust Company Limited and Axis Bank Limited transferred balance
25, 00,000 Shares to Indraprastha Gas Limited which made Indraprastha Gas Limited as 50% shareholder of
Maharashtra Natural Gas Limited
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7. COMPANY PERFORMANCE

Duringthe year, the Company recorded sales as under:

(Figures in mmscm)

Particulars Forthe Year Forthe Year
2014-15 2013-14 % Growth (YoY)
Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) 105.35 79.08 33.22%
Piped Natural Gas (PNG) 1.97 33.27 26.15%
Total 47.32 112.35 31.12%
Average Sales per day (mmscmd) 0.40 40.308 31.17%

a. Compressed Natural Gas Business (CNG)

During this year 2014-15, CNG business has [
performed very well. Your Company further
augmented its CNG distribution infrastructure

Nos. of CNG Stations (Cumulative) \

by enhancing capacity of existing stations and 30 28 30
adding 2 new CNG stations - taking the total 17 17
number of CNG Stations to 30 at the end of the 20 —
Financial year. Additionally, 3 Daughter Booster 10 -
stations were converted to online on account of
pipeline connectivity being established to the g
2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

stations. The cumulative compression capacity \

2014-15 )

has increased to 28350 scmh during FY 2014-15

from previous year's cumulative compression capacity of 22800 scmh(24.34% increase).

The number of vehicles operating on CNG as in July 2015 end were more than 82,000, showing a YoY growth of around
25%. MNGL currently refuels around 1230 buses, around 40,000 four wheelers and 42,000 three wheelers in addition to
few vehicles from the Municipal Garbage Department and the Postal Department
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b. Piped Natural Gas (PNG) - Domestic Connections:

The Company has continued expansion of Piped
Natural Gas distribution infrastructure in various (Nos. of PNG Domestic Connection (Cumulative)\

areas of PMC which includes Model Colony, Apte

Road, Amanora Park Town, Magarpatta City in 200001—

Hadapsar, Kothrud and in PCMC which includes 15000 16147
Akurdi, Nehru Nagar Extension & Vallabh Nagar, 12324

Chikali Moshi, Indrayani Nagar &Chakan.New L0 6181

areas such as Kharadi, Vimannagar, Warje, 5000— =

Nanded city, Pimpale Saudagar, Wakad, Hijewadi, 0

Chinchwad has also been identified & work has \

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15)
commenced inthese areas.

Your Company has provided PNG connection to
around 16147 domestic customers till FY 2014-15 and continued to increase greater coverage for domestic customer
across Pune.

c. PNG - Industrial & Commercial Connection:

Your Company has maintained its focus on the Industrial and Commercial segment as one of the potential growth areasin
the forthcoming years. Total nos. of Commercial Customers has increased from 31 in March 2014 to 46 in March 2015
which includes "The Westin" as our largest commercial customer and the very prestigious "Amanora Mall". Industrial
customers has been increased from 83 in March 2014 to 98 in March 2015 by connecting major automobile Companies
like General Motors, Volkswagen, Mercedes Benz, Mahindra & Mahindra. Commercial Sales volume grew by 91.30 % and
Industrial Sales volume has grew up by 25.68 % over the previous year. The Company continues to expand its network to
reach various Industrial unitsin the surrounding areas.

During the year, Your Company has laid a network of 47.54 Kms MDPE pipeline and 5 Kms of Steel Pipeline. As on date,
your Company has laid a network of 273.09 Kms MDPE pipeline and 136.13 Kms of Steel Pipeline to cater to Vehicular,
Industrial, Commercial and Domestic Customersin Pune & Pimpri Chinchwad, Hinjewadi and Chakan & Talegaon.

60 L Industrial / Commercial Connection (Nos.) \
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8.PROGRESS OF THE PROJECT
Stations were converted to Online Stations ( Compressmn Capaaty (Lakhs Kg/day) \

during the course of the yearYour Company has 5 |

5 Mother Stations at Chikali, Sant Tukaram 4 ioe

Nagar, Shivaji Nagar, Kothrudand Hadapsar - 3

with new Mother Stations being planned at

PMPML Depots at Nigdi and Katraj. 3 existing 2

Daughter Booster. Your Company is currently 1

servicing more than 82,000 CNG vehicles 0

through 13 Daughter Booster Stations and 13 K 2011-12 2012-13  2013-14 2014-15 j

Online Stations - most of which operate 24 x 7, in
addition to retail sales from Mega Mother Station at Chikali.

Inauguration of CNG Station (Shahid Patil) by hands of Shri J. Vedagiri, Director (Commercial)

With increase in compression capacity and increase in CNG & PNG customer base, the average sale per day hasincreased
from 0.308 mmscmdin FY 13-14t0 0.404 mmscmd in FY 14-15.

é SALES (MMSCM) )
10 S 147.32
140 [~
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9. FUTURE OUTLOOK

The principal business of your Company is distribution of natural gas in the form of PNG & CNG, which is a convenient and
cleaner fuel and helps users to reduce the pollution levels.

Your Company plans to make a significant investment in CGD infrastructure to expand its existing steel & PE pipeline
network by an additional 250 Km steel and 1000 Km MDPE over the next 5 years.

InCNG, MNGL s intending to expand its CNG customer base & serve them effectively by setting up 150 more CNG stations
in addition to conversion of existing DBS to online stations and thus increasing the compression capacity in the next 5
years. The city bus service provider of Pune - PMPML is also aggressively increasing its fleet of CNG buses. This number is
expected to reach over 1700 by the end of FY 2015-16 and a further addition of around 500 buses per year is expected.
Introduction of newer CNG variant models by different vehicle manufacturers & conversion of petrol driven private
vehiclesinto CNG mode due to the price differential of CNG versus alternate liquid fuel will continue to add to CNG sales.

MNGLis also interacting with major builders and developers to provide PNG facility in their upcoming residential projects.
Builders like Kolte Patil, Ishwar Parmar Group, Empire Builder, Paranjpe Developer, GK Associates and many others are
expected to add approximately 2 Lakh domestic connections in the next 5 years. This will help your company to optimize
use of its assets and infrastructure. Company has aggressive plans to expand its pipeline infrastructure in the areas of
Kharadi, Hadapsar, Warje, Kothrud, Kalyani Nagar etc. in PMC and Pimple Gurav, Pimple Saudagar, Chinchwad, Dapodi,
Wakad & Hinjewadi etc. in PCMC. MNGL is targeting to achieve a daily sales volume of additional 200000 scmd from
industrial and commercial customers in the next 5 years. This will include Government organizations like Ammunition
Factory Khadki (AFK) and High Explosive Factory (HEF). As well as large scale private customers like Bharat Forge and
Tetrapak are expected to contribute to MNGL's growth for assured rise in industrial and commercial daily sales volumes.
Efforts have also been initiated to supply PNG to the industrial units at Urse initially through R-LNG supply till pipeline

connectivity is established.
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10. REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS

Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board (PNGRB) vide its order no. TO/03/2012 dated 9th April'’2012 determined the
Network Tariff and Compression Charges for Indraprastha Gas Limited, Delhi (IGL) which was much lower than as
submitted by IGL to the PNGRB. Resultantly, the said Order also prescribed reduction in final selling price to reflect a
reduction in Network Tariff and Compression Charges. Further, PNGRB made the determined tariffs applicable with
retrospective effect from 1st April 2008.

IGL challenged the said Order of the PNGRB in Delhi High Court. The Delhi High court vide its judgment delivered on 1st
June 2012 has held that PNGRB is not empowered to fix or regulate maximum retail price (including components thereof
such as Network Tariff and Compression Charges) at which gas is to be sold by IGL to its consumers. The Honorable Court
has quashed PNGRB order dated 9th April' 2012.

PNGRB then filed a 'Special leave petition'in the Hon'ble Supreme court appealing the Hon'ble High Court order dated 1st
June 2012. To protect its interest, MNGL has also filed Intervention Application (IA) in Hon'ble Supreme court, and has
filedits reply to the PNGRB's petition.

PNGRB has submitted in the Honorable Supreme court that it did not desire to regulate the price of the gas sold to the
customers and the Delhi High Court had erred in finding that this litigation was about price regulation. PNGRB wanted
that CGD entities should make disclosure to the PNGRB and public/customers regarding the break-up of the price being
charged. PNGRB also pointed out that the Central Government's letter of February 2014 also asked for the disclosure of
price components and break-up. The Court has ordered the respondents to reply to the PNGRB's application within 2
weeks (i.e. by 18 July,2014) and the PNGRB filed a rejoinder within 1 week thereafter (i.e. by 25 July,2014).

Subsequent hearing before court took place and Supreme Court's has passed the judgment on 1stJuly'15 as following:

"The present appeal, by special leave, calls in question the legal defensibility and the tenability of the judgment and order
dated 01.06.2012 passed by the High Court of Delhiin W.P.(C) No. 2034 of 2012 whereby the Division Bench has ruled that
Petroleumand Natural Gas Regulatory Board (for short, "the Board") is not empowered to fix orregulate the maximum
retail price at which gas is to be sold by entities such as Indraprastha Gas Ltd, to the consumers and further the Board is
also not empowered to fix any component of network tariff or compression charge for an entity having its own
distribution network. On the aforesaid foundation, the High Court has opined that the provisions of Petroleum and
Natural Gas Regulatory Board (Determination of Network Tariff for City or Local Natural Gas Distribution Networks and
Compression Charge for CNG) Regulations, 2008 (hereinafter referred to as "the Regulations") as far as it is construed to
empower the Board to fix the tariff is unsustainable and accordingly as a sequitur the order dated 9.4.2012 to the extent of
fixing the maximum retail price or requiring the respondents to disclose the entire tariff and the compression charges to
its consumers, is not in consonance with the Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board Act, 2008 (for brevity "the
Act"), and accordingly quashed the same.

11. TOWARDS CUSTOMER DELIGHT

In view of the changing dynamics in the business environment, the Company has been proactive in taking various
initiatives towards Customers delight. Your Company has an interactive customer care cell in order to redress the
grievances of the customers to enhance customer satisfaction level. The Customer Redressal Mechanism is in place to
resolve the issues of customers. The company has also initiated the Digitization activities as listed by MoPNG for Online
activities like PNG connection request, Dealer Feedback & Grievance Redressal and has completed the activities of Online

(10)
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Payment, E-Bill facility Service Request etc. Your Company is also in process of launching an application for benefit of all
the customers.

12. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

We are pleased to announce that MNGL's Project "Lakshya" has been successfully gone live from 26th September, 2014.
MNGL has implemented Materials, HR, PM, ISU and FI modules in SAP and started using the same. There was migration to
SAP system and entire data base is integrated. All the departments are very pro-active in leveraging SAP and suggesting
new ways to provide up-to-date, real time and detailed data for analysis.

13. HUMAN RESOURCES

During the year, your Company has been investing in progressive employee relations practices to ensure that it invests in
capability at the grass root level. Your Company enjoyed harmonious and cordial human relationship amongst all its
employees. Your Company undertook various HR initiatives to further infuse professionalism in the workforce, such as
performance management system and streamlining other HR Policies. Your Company has set up a scalable recruitment
and human resources management process, to attract and retain high-caliber employees.

Your Company focuses on employee development on a continuous basis. With the aim of encouraging a competitive spirit
and winning attitude to take on future challenges, keen attention is given to training programs and workshops. During the
year, 68 numbers of employees were in employment in the company. 34 aspectsof business areas are covered and 49
employees were accorded training. Also a large number of contract workmen which includes DSM's, Patrolling men and
Control Room Staff were regularly trained on safe operations.

There has been continuous emphasis on building capabilities & learning for all employees aimed at better Organizational
performance. The Company is reviewing all other HR policies to make them more competitive and aligned with best
industry practices.

14. HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT (HSE)

Your Company's HSE policy is to conduct business with a robust and integrated Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)
Management System focused on improving harmony with the environment through sustainable development. Safety and
Health of its people is of paramount importance for your Company and these attributes are embedded in the core
organizational values of your Company. Employees and Contract Workers in your Company are strongly encouraged to
adopt safe working culture and behaviour to ensure effective implementation of the HSE Policy. Your Company identifies
all the Health, Safety and Environment hazards, evaluates the associated risks and manages these through effective and
appropriate control programs and deployment of latest technology.

Inline with Company's HSE policy, regular Safety Audits by fire and safety team are carried out to ensure safety in all facets
of Company's operations. Tripartite agreement between projects, O&M and Safety is regularly implemented to facilitate
commissioning of major installations. Hazard and near miss reporting has been implemented to take preventive actions.
Third party incidents have reduced from 30 to 13 in this FY due to close liasioning with other diggings agencies, placing of
excavation supervisors and implementation of 'Dial before Dig' campaign.

Regular safety training is being imparted to employees, contract staff and consumers of CNG and PNG. A special mobile
training Van has been hired to facilitate on the spot training at site and housing society safety awareness. Innovative
Safety awareness in the form of Radio Jingles to educate the consumers coming for CNG filling and PNG consumers for

(i)
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actionto be takenin case of gas leaks are regularly aired on FM radio "Radio One".

Four Emergency Control rooms have been established at strategic locations across PMC, PCMC and Chakan and manned
round the clock to respond quickly to any gas leak or emergency situation. Offsite mock drill was successfully conducted

leading to ERDMP recertification of MNGL response planin presence of PNGRB approved agency.

Shri A.M.Tambekar(Managing Director) MNGL, Shri Sagar Varma (Ch. Manager (F&S),
ShriOmprakashBahiwal (Disaster Management Coordinator, PCMC) , Shri KiranGawade (Chief
Fire Officer, PCMC Fire Brigade) at National Safety Week conducted by MNGL

o CGD Network Safety

One of the primary concerns with respect to gas distribution is the safety and security of the pipeline network. The
network of pipelines being used to distribute the gas needs to be maintained at the highest operating and safety level,
because any leakage can lead to catastrophic accidents. The safety regulations/guidelines are given the highest priority
while taking up the CGD activities. The safety guidelines have been framed by the Oil Industry Safety Directorate (OISD), a
technical body under the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas (MoP&NG). All the Pipeline network of the Company has
been fully patrolled regularly.

OISD-179 sets the guidelines for safety requirement on compression, storage, handling, refueling of natural gas for use in
automotive sector. All safety facilities at CNG stations are as per the guidelines of OISD-179 and GCR 2004.Additionally,
Safety at CNG stationsis monitored by PESO, especially during construction phase.

15. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Company believes that Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) plays a major role in the development of any country.
Therefore, it has made Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) an integral part of its ethos and culture. Your Company
always laid emphasis on the sustainable development of the society and environment.

During FY 2014-15, Your Company has developed Corporate Social Responsibility Policy pursuant to section 135 of
Companies Act, 2013. The policy covers matters in the field of promoting gender equality, promoting education,
eradicating hunger, poverty, skill development etc. The policy intends to strive for economic development that positively
impacts society at large by way of optimum utilization of resources.

(i2)
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The Annual Report on CSR activities in accordance with the companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, is

appended as Annexure "A" to this report.

Vocational Training Program (Back-hoe Loader training) under CSR Initiative

16. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule (8)(3)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is appended as Annexure "B"

17. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

No employee was in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits set out under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

18. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of Companies Act, 2013, directors, to the best of their

knowledge and belief state that:

A.

In the preparation of Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31,2015, the applicable accounting

standards have been followed;

They had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently except where otherwise stated in the Notes
to Accounts and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year under

review.

They had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the asset of the Company and for preventing and detecting

fraud and otherirregularities; and
They had prepared the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015 on a going concern basis.

The directors had laid down an established internal financial control framework including internal controls over

(13)




MNGL

financial reporting, operating controls and for the prevention and detection of fraud and errors. The framework is
reviewed periodically by Management and tested by the internal auditors and statutory auditors. Based on the
periodical testing the framework is strengthened from time to time to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of
internal financial controls.

F. Thedirectorshad devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of allapplicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

19. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company believes that good corporate governance is critical in establishing a positive organizational culture.The new
Companies Act, 2013 have strengthened the governance regime in the country. At MNGL, Corporate Governance is all
about maintaining a valuable relationship and trust with all stakeholders. We consider stakeholders as partners in our
success, and we remain committed to maximizing stakeholders' value, be it shareholders, employees, suppliers,
customers, investors, communities or policy makers. In line with the requirements of these core values and new law, the
Company through its Board and Committees endeavors to strike and deliver the highest governing standards for the
benefits of its stakeholders.

20. AUDITORS:
 Statutory Auditors & Audit Report

The Statutory Auditors of your Company is appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG). M/s PG
Bhagwat, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101118W) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors for the
Financial Year 2014-15.

The Statutory Auditors have been paid a remuneration of Rs. 2.25 Lakh towards audit fee. The above fees are exclusive of
applicable service taxand reimbursement of reasonable travelling and out of pocket expenses actually incurred.

The Report given by the Statutory Auditors on the financial statements for FY 2014-5 and the Comments of Comptroller &
Auditor General of India (C&AG) forms part of the Annual Report.

There has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report and there
are no supplementary comments by C&AG pursuant to provisions of Companies Act, 2013. Notes on Accounts referred to
inthe Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

e CostAuditors

During the year 2013-14, M/s Joshi Apte& Associates, Cost Accountants, were appointed as the Cost Auditors to conduct
Audit of cost accounting records maintained by the Company.

The due date for filing cost audit reports for the financial year ended 31st March, 2014 was 30th September, 2014 and the
same were filed to Registrar of Companies on 27th September, 2014. The letter regarding maintenance of Cost Records for
the year ended 31st March, 2015 was successfully submitted to the Company on 7th August, 2015.

As per Section 148 read with Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013. the Board of Directors of our Company has re-appointed M/s. Joshi Apte& Associates., Cost
Accountants, as Cost Auditors for the financial year 2015-2016 at the remuneration of Rs. 1,10,000/- (plus applicable taxes
and duties) and out of pocket expenses for travelling, stay, local conveyance etc. on actual basis.

()
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As required under the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the cost auditor is required to be placed before
the members in a general meeting for their ratification. Accordingly, a resolution seeking member's ratification for the
remuneration payable to M/s. Joshi Apte& Associates, Cost Auditors is included in the Notice convening the Annual
General Meeting.

¢ Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013,Your Company had appointed M/s Rajas Bodas & Associates,
Company Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2014-15. The Secretarial Audit Report confirming
compliance by Practicing Company Secretary to applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and other applicable
laws forms part of this report as "Annexure C" to this Report.

The observations made by secretarial auditorin his Audit report are as under:

i.  Company did not have independent directors on its board till 27thMarch, 2015. Hence the Composition of various
committees prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 like Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee was not strictly in compliance with the respective sections, to the
extent of participation ofindependent directors.

ii. The Company has not constituted an internal complaints Committee as contemplated by The Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. However the Company has a few provisions
in protection of its women employees as per its Service rules.

iii. The company has not satisfactorily complied with the half yearly reporting provisions of Section 3(3) of Maharashtra
Fire Prevention and Life Safety Measures Act, 2006 and rules made there under.

* Explanation on observations made by secretarial auditor in seriatim are as under:

i.  MNGL was not having Independent Directors till 27th March, 2015. Two Independent Directors were appointed on
28th March, 2015 as per the requirement of Law. Hence Committee were reconstituted after the appointment of
Independent Director to include their participation. No meeting of any committee was held or any resolution has
been passed without reconstitution of the committees and participation of Independent Directors after 28th March,
2015.

ii.  Company has adequate provisions regarding protection of its women employees as per its service rules. The Policy
on sexual harassment of Women has approved by Board in 56th Board Meeting held on 18th August, 2015 and
internal compliant committee has been constituted as per provision of law.

iii. Company is maintaining firefighting equipment as per provision of Maharashtra Fire Prevention and Life Safety
Measures Act, 2006 and Gas cylinder rules for CNG stations. Local Fire NOC has been taken from PCMC and PMC
emplaned vendor as a part of compliance under Maharashtra Fire Prevention and Life Safety Measures Act, 2006.
PMC and PCMC are having own empanelment of firefighting vendors and hence our vendor is not necessarily
empaneledin the Directory of Maharashtra Fire service, Mumbai. Also, as per the discussion with auditor, MNGL has
submitted the NOC taken from PMC empanelled vendor to PMC Fire brigade and complied with the provision of
Section 3(3) of Maharashtra Fire Prevention and Life Safety Measures Act, 2006 and rules made there under.

21.EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as "Annexure D".

(i5)
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22.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

There are no material related party transactions made by the company which may have potential conflict with interest of
the companyatlarge hence AOC-2 is not enclosed with the Report.

23. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION:{Section 178 (3) and 178 (4)}

The Company has duly established a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Committee has presented to the
Board the policy with respect to remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

As per the provisions of Companies Act 2013, the policy includes criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes,
independence of a director, remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnal, other employees. Policy also includes
recognition of one level below Key Managerial personnel as decided by the Board.

The contents of Nomination & Remuneration Policy of MNGL are displayed on MNGL's website at:
http://www.mngl.in/Nomination%20and%20Remuneration.html

24. MANAGERIALREMUNERATION:

The Executive and Whole-time Directors of the company are paid remuneration as per their respective contracts which
are approved by the Board after taking into consideration the recommendations made by Nomination & Remuneration
Committee.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee also recommends the sitting fees which is required to be paid to Non-
Executive Directors of the company. The Independent Directors and Non- Executive Directors are paid sitting fees of
Rs.20,000/- per Board Meeting and Rs. 10,000/- per committee meeting for attending the meetings.

25. RISKMANAGEMENT POLICY

During the financial year 2014-15, the Company has developed a Risk Management System including the Risk Policy &
identification of the Risks which are reviewed periodically.

Your Company has laid down set of standards, processes and structure which enables to implement internal financial
control across the organization and ensure.

Your company has putin place critical risk management framework across the company. Your company review its policy in
a continuously changing business environment. The various risks to the company are in the sphere of regulation, business
risk, expansion etc.

In the management of Risk, the probability of risk assumption is estimated on the basis of available data and information
and accordingly appropriate risk treatments have been worked out. Your company making efforts to ensure strict
adherence to policies, procedures, rules and regulations.

The management of your company has understood and analyzed all the risks existing or proposed to exist in future and
triesto mitigate the sameinadherence toall therules.

The contents of Risk Management Policy of MNGL are displayed on MNGL's website at:
http://www.mngl.in/risk_management_policy.html

(i6)
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26. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The whistle blower policy of your Company has robust framework which encourages people to report breach of contract,
negligence and manipulation of Company records, financial irregularity etc.

Your Company encourages its employees who have concerns about suspected misconduct to come forward and express
their concerns without fear of punishment or unfair treatment.

The company accepts the obligation to ensure that any individual covered under this policy, who make a disclosure
without malice andin good faith is protected from unfair treatment.

During the current year, your company has not received any complaints against any employee or member of the
organization.

The contents of Whistle Blower Policy of MNGL are displayed on MNGL's website at:
http://www.mngl.in/whistle_blower_policy.html

27.SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES COMPANIES

Your Company does not have any subsidiaries, Joint venture and Associate companies as on 31st March, 2015.
28. DISCLOSURES:

A.Board of Directors

As per Articles of Association of the Company, one third strength of the Board is required to retire by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. Shril.S.Rao and Shri Gajendra Singh are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

Duringthe year, following directors were appointed on the Board of MNGL:

19.08.2015  Shri J.Vedagiri was appointed as Director Commercial (Whole-time Director) on the Board of MNGL
pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the
Company with effect from 19th August, 2015.

17.03.2015 Shri A.M.Tambekar was appointed as an Additional Director and Managing Director on the Board of MNGL
pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the
Company with effect from 17th March, 2015. Further, notice pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been received from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director.

28.03.2015 Shri Rajesh Babulal Pande (Independent Director) was appointed as an Additional Director and
Independent Director on the Board of MNGL pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Articles of Association of the Company with effect from 28th March, 2015. Further, notice
pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been received from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of Director

28.03.2015 Ms Padmini Khare Kaicker (Woman Independent Director) was appointed as an Additional Director and
Independent Director on the Board of MNGL pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Articles of Association of the Company with effect from 28th March, 2015. Further, notice
pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been received from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of Director

(17)
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22.04.2015

06.05.2015

17.06.2015

Shri Deepak Kumar Jamsaheb Mukadam (Independent Director) was appointed as an Additional Director
and Independent Director on the Board of MNGL pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company with effect from 22nd April, 2015. Further, notice
pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been received from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of Director.

Shri Narendra Kumar (Nominee IGL) was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of MNGL
pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the
Company with effect from 06th May, 2015. Further, notice pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been received from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director.

Shri Ashim Batra (Nominee IGL) was appointed as an Nominee Director on the Board of MNGL pursuant to
provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company with
effect from 17th June, 2015 in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on receiving the notice pursuant to
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 for proposing his candidature for the office of Director.

During the year, followings were ceased to be the directors from the Board of MNGL:

27.05.2015

31.07.2015

01.02.2015

27.03.2015

Shri Shyamsundar S.G. (Nominee of IDFC) ceased to be Director from the Board with effect from 27thMay,
2015 on account of his resignation from IDFC.

Shri C.K.Jainceased to be Director from the Board with effect from 31st July, 2015 on account of his
retirement from Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited.

Shri B.N.Gosain(Managing Director) ceased to be Director from the Board with effect from 01st February,
2015 on account of his retirement from GAIL (India) Limited.

Shri Krishna Kumar (Nominee of IL&FS) and Shri Vinod Giri (Nominee of IDFC) ceased to be Director from
the Board with effect from 27thMarch, 2015 on account of their resignation.

The Board placed on record its deep appreciation for the valuable services rendered by outgoing Directors during their

association with your Company.

None of the Directors are disqualified from being appointed as Directors in term of provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

B. Compositions:

The Company has nine Directors on its Board comprising two Executive Directors namely Managing Director and Director

(Commercial), five Non-Executive Directors and two Non Executive Independent Directors. The composition and category

of Directors along with other Directorships ason March 31, 2015:

Sr.  Name of Directors Executive/Non-Executive/ Directorship in other public

No.

1. | ShrilSRao(DIN:02350683) Chairman 1. Sabarmati Gas Limited

Independent company

2. GSPLIndia Transco Ltd.
3.GSPLIndia Gasnet Limited
4. Central U P Gas Limited
5.Indraprastha Gas Limited
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2. | ShriB.N.Gosain (DIN:06564331) Managing Director till 01.02.2015 Nil
3. | ShriA.M.Tambekar (DIN:06877323)| Managing Director w.e.f17.03.2015 Nil
4 | ShriC.K.Jain (DIN:03572612) Director Commercial till 31.07.2014 Nil
5. | ShrilJ.Vedagiri (DIN:06943165) Director Commercial w.e.f. 19.08.2015| Nil
6. |ShriGajendraSingh Non- Executive Director 1. GAILGlobal (Singapore)
(DIN:032902438) Pte. Ltd.
7 | Shri Shyam Sundar S.G. Director till 27.05.2014 1. Seaways Shipping and
(DIN: 02202523) Logistics Limited
2. AshokaBuildcon Limited
3. Goodearth Maritime Limited
4. GVR Infra Projects Limited
8. | ShriKrishna Kumar (DIN:00090715) | Directortill 27.03.2015 1. Den Network Ltd.
2. DighiPort Ltd.
3. Konaseema Gas power Ltd.
4. Petronet India Limited
5. Syniverse Technologies
(India) Pvt. Ltd.
6. Worlds Window Infrastructure
and logistics Pvt. Ltd.
9. | ShriVinod Giri (DIN: 02632824 ) Director till 27.03.2015 1. Seaways Shipping and
Logistics Limited
10. |[Shri Rajesh Babulal Pande Independent Director 1. Telematiccomsec Pvt. Ltd.
(DIN: 02219538) w.e.f 28.03.2015 Pune
11. | Ms. Padmini Khare Kaicker Independent Director 1. B.K.Khare& Co. (managing

(DIN: 00296388)

w.e.f 28.03.2015

Partner)
2. M&M ESOP Trust (Trustee)

3. Kashinath Charitable Trust
(Trustee)

4. AdyatmikPratishthan
(Trustee)

5. Divgi Warner Private Limited

6. Tata Cleantech Capital
Limited

7. Tata Automotive Ltd.
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C. Board Meetings:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, every Company shall
hold a minimum of four meeting of its Board of Directors every year in such manner that not more than one hundred and
twenty days shall intervene between two consecutive meetings of the Board.

Duringthe year Directors' attendance in the Board Meetings are given below:

Sr. Name of Directors Executive/Non-Executive No. of No of

/Independent meeting meeting

held attended
1. | Shril.S.Rao (DIN:02350683) Chairman 7 7
2. | ShriB.N.Gosain (DIN:06564331) Managing Director till 01.02.2015 5 5
3. | ShriA.M.Tambekar (DIN:06877323) Managing Director w.e.f 17.03.2015 2 2
4. | ShriC.K.Jain(DIN:03572612) Director Commercial till 31.07.2014 2 2
5. | ShriJ.Vedagiri (DIN:06943165) Director Commercial w.e.f. 19.08.2015 5 5
6. | ShriGajendraSingh (DIN:03290248) Non- Executive Director 7 5
7. | ShriShyam SundarS.G. (DIN:02202523) Directortill 27.05.2014 1 1
8. | ShriKrishna Kumar (DIN:00090715) Directortill 27.03.2015 7 5
9. | ShriVinod Giri (DIN:02632824) Directortill 27.03.2015 6 4
10. | ShriRajesh Babulal Pande (DIN:02219538) | IndependentDirectorw.e.f28.03.2015 - -
11. | Ms. PadminiKhare Kaicker (DIN:00296388) | Independent Director w.e.f28.03.2015 - -

e ShriNarendraKumar (DIN: 06571708) was appointed as an additional Director w.e.f. 06.05.2015.
e ShriDeepak KumarJamsaheb Mukadam (DIN: 00716932) was appointed as additional Director w.e.f. 22.04.2015.
e ShriAshim Batra (DIN:07173368) was appointed as a nominee director w.e.f. 17.06.2015.

During the Financial Year 2014-15, total 7 Board meetings were held. Details of aforesaid meeting are provided in
following table.

Sr. No. Date of Meeting Place of Meeting
1 14-05-2014 Registered Office, Pune
2 24-06-2014 GAILALYA, Bandra-Kurla, Mumbai
3 19-08-2014 IDFC, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Mumbai
4 19-09-2014 Registered Office, Pune
5 12-12-2014 Registered Office, Pune
6 17-03-2015 GAILALYA, Bandra-Kurla, Mumbai
7 27-03-2015 IL&FS, Bandra- Kurla Complex, Mumbai

3)
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D. General Meeting

Details of Last three Annual General Meetings held are as follows:-

No. of Meeting Date of Meeting Place of Meeting
1 6th AGM 25-09-2012 Registered Office, Shivaji Nagar, Pune
2 7thAGM 20-09-2013 Registered Office, Shivaji Nagar, Pune
3 8thAGM 19-09-2014 Registered Office, Shivaji Nagar, Pune

Attendance of Directorsinthe last Annual General Meeting held on 19th September, 2014 is as under:

Name of Directors Executive/Non-Executive / Independent Attendance atthe Meeting
1. ShrilSRao Chairman & Non-Executive Director Yes
2. ShriGajendra Singh Non-Executive Director No
2 ShriB.N.Gosain Executive Director Yes
3 Shril).Vedagiri Executive Director No
4 ShriVinod Giri Non-Executive Director Yes
5 ShriKrishna Kumar Non-Executive Director No

No Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) was held during Financial Year 2014-15. However, One Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting was held on 17th June, 2015 at GAILALYA, Bandra-Kurla, Mumbaito conduct the following business:

1. Amendmentinthe Articles of Association regarding constitution of the Board (Article 117)
2. Appointment of Shri Ashim Batra as a Nominee Director on the Board of MNGL.
E. Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to Section 203, 196 & 197 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment &
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 following persons act as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the
Company :-

ShriB.N.Gosain was initially appointed as Managing Director (MD)of the Company with effect from 17th April,2013 As per
new Companies Act, 2013, he has been appointed as Managing Director as part of KMP with effect from 19thAugust,
2014. Further, he ceased to be Managing Director (MD) of the Company with effect from 01st February, 2015. Thereafter,
Shri A.M.Tambekar, Managing Director (MD) has been appointed as KMP of the Company with effect from 17th March,
2015

ShriJ.Vedagiri was appointed as Director (Commercial) (WTD) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company with effect
from 19th August, 2014.

Ms. Ritu Aggarwal was initially appointed as Company Secretary (CS) with effect from 26th July, 2011. Further with the
introduction of Companies Act, 2013, she has been appointed as Company Secretary as part of KMP with effect from 19th
August, 2014.
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F. Declaration Of Independence

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the requirements as
stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to be appointed as Independent
Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules.

In compliance of above provisions, the Board received the declaration from the Independent Directors i.e. Ms. Padmini
Khare Kaicker, Shri Rajesh Babulal Pande and Shri Deepak Kumar Jamsaheb Mukadam confirming that they meet the
criteria ofindependence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

G. Constitutions of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
Your company has constituted the following committees as per the provision of Companies Act 2013
I. Audit Committee

The Terms & Reference of the Audit Committee is in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, which
interlia includes overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information;
reviewing with the management, the quarterly and annual financial statement before submission to the Board for
approval; reviewing with the management the performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, adequacy of internal
control system.

Ason 27.03.2015, the constitution of Audit Committee was:
Mr. Krishna Kumar (Chairman)

Mr.1SRao (Member)

Mr. A.M.Tambekar (Member)

Mr. Vinod Giri (Member)

However, with the induction of Independent Directors, the Audit Committee meeting was reconstituted as per the

provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and related rules as follows:

Sr.No. Members of Committee Executive/Non-Executive/Independent  Position in the Committee
1 Ms. PadminiKhare Kaicker | Independent & Non-Executive Director Chairman
2 ShriRajesh Babulal Pande Independent & Non-Executive Director Member
3 Shri Gajendra Singh Non-Executive Director Member

Duringthe year 2014-15, six meetings of the Audit Committee were held.

Il. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Ason 31.03.2015, the constitution of Nomination and Remuneration committee was:
Shri Gajendra Singh (Chairman)

Shri Vinod Giri (Member)

Shri Krishna Kumar (Member)
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However, with the induction of Independent Directors, the Audit Committee meeting was reconstituted through circular
resolution w.e.f 13th April,2015 as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and related rules.

The Committee is headed by Shri Gajendra Singh Non-Executive Director. Composition of the Committee is as per given

below:
Members of Committee Executive/Non-Executive/Independent  Positionin the Committee
1 ShriGajendra Singh Non-Executive Director Chairman
2 ShriRajesh Babulal Pande Independent & Non-Executive Director Member
3 Ms. PadminiKhare Kaicker | Independent & Non-Executive Director Member

Duringthe year 2014-15, five meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held.
I1l. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The CSR Committee of the Board was constituted in the 47th Board meeting held on 14thMay, 2014 to approve the scope
and policy of CSR activities as per Companies Act, 2013 and related rules.

Ason 31.03.2015, the constitution of Corporate Social Responsibility committee was:
Shri Gajendra Singh (Chairman)

Shri Vinod Giri (Member)

Shri A.M.Tambekar (Member)

Shri J.Vedagiri (Member)

and further re-constituted with the induction of Independent Director in 54th Board Meeting held on 06.05.2015.

The CSR Committee is headed by Shri Gajendra Singh, Non-Executive Director. The Composition of the Committee is as per

given below:
Members of Committee Executive/Non-Executive/Independent  Position in the Committee
1 ShriGajendra Singh Non-Executive Director Chairman
2 Shri ISRao Non-Executive Director Member
3 ShriDeepak Kumar
Jamsaheb Mukadam Non-Executive and Independent Director | Member

Duringthe year2014-15, one meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was held.
H. Formal Annual Evaluation:

The Board of Directors carried out the evaluation of every Director, committees of Board and the Board as a whole based
onthelaid down criteria of performance evaluation.

29. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and analysis forms part of this report at Annexure 'F'.
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30. GENERAL:
1. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

Except the order passed by arbitrator in respect of M/s Taurant vs MNGL, there are no significant and material orders
passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

Il. OTHER MATERIAL CHANGES

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(l) and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, save as aforesaid in this report, no
material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between the end of
the financial year of the Companyi.e. 31st March, 2015 and the date of this report.

31. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUALHARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The following is a summary of Sexual harassment complaints received and disposed-off during the calendar year.
Number of complaints received : Nil
Number of complaints disposed-off : Nil

32.SHAREHODING PATTERN AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2015

Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on 31st March, 2015 is as follows:

Sr. Name of Shareholders No of Equity Shares % of Shares held
held @3 10/-each
1 GAIL (India) Limited 22,487,500 23.67%
2 Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited 22,499,600 23.68%
3. IDFCTrustee Co. Ltd A/CIDFC Infrastructure 10,00,000 1.05%
Fund 2 A/CIDFC Private Equity Fund Il.
4. IL& FS Trust Company Limited 5,55,556 0.58%
5. Pan Asia Infrastructure Asset Management Co. Pte Ltd 4,44,444 0.47%
6. Axis Bank Limited 5,00,000 0.53%
7. Indraprastha Gas Limited 4,75,00,000 50.00%
8. Other (individual jointly with GAIL India Limited) 12,500 0.01%
4 Others (Individuals) 400 -
Total 9,50,00,000 100%

e 0On17.06.2015, 50,00,000 Shares were issued to Maharashtra Industrial Corporation Limited which leads to increase
in Paid-up Capital from Rs. 95,00,00,000 (Rs. 95 Crores) to Rs. 100,00,00,000 (Rs. 100 Crores)

e 0n 10.07.2015, 25,00,000 (25 lakhs) Shares i.e. entire shareholding of IDFC, IL&FS, PAN Asia & Axis Bank was further
transferred to Indraprastha Gas Limited (IGL) which made IGL as a 50% Partner in MNGL by holding 5,00,00,000

(5 Crores) shares.

@)
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23. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation and sincere thanks to the Ministry of
Petroleum and Natural Gas, Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board (PNGRB) , Government of India,
Government of Maharashtra, Banks, Other Statutory and Local Government Bodies, Statutory Auditors, Consultants
and local citizens for the continued co-operation and unstinted support extended to the Company.

The Directors also record their appreciation to its promoters, GAIL (India) Limited, Bharat Petroleum Corporation
Limited and Indraprastha Gas Limited for their support.

The Directors place on record their deep appreciation towards its valued customers for their co-operation, patronage
& support and look forward to the continuance of this relationship in future also.

The Directors wish to express their gratitude to all the shareholders, contractors and suppliers for their continued trust
andsupport.

The Directors also sincerely acknowledge the contributions made by all the employees of MNGL for their dedicated
servicestothe Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For Maharashtra Natural Gas Limited
sd/-

I.S.Rao

Chairman

Place: Mumbai
Date:25.09.2015
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ANNEXURE- "A”

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2014-15
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies

(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. Abrief outline of the Company's CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and areference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs:-

Maharashtra Natural Gas Limited (MNGL) recognizes that its business activities have direct and indirectimpact on the
society. The Company strives to integrate its business values and operations in an ethical and transparent manner to
demonstrate its commitment to sustainable development and to meet the interest of its stakeholders.

A responsible business is expected to not only take care of its stakeholders but also to engage and contribute
meaningfully towards improving the quality of life of the communities and environment in which it operates. MNGL
follows the Board approved CSR Policy which is in line with requirements of Companies Act, 2013.

The contents of CSR Policy of MNGL are displayed on MNGL's website at:http://www.mngl.in/csr_policy.html
2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:-

Shri Gajendra Singh (Chairman)

Shri | S Rao (Member)

Shri Deepak Kumar Jamsaheb (Member)

3. Average profit (PBT) of the company for last three financial yearsunder Sec 198 of Companies Act, 2013:-
Rs. 50.20 Crores

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above):- Rs.1 Crore

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:-

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year- Rs.1 Crore
(b) Amount unspent, if any- NIL
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:
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1 (2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sr. |CSR project or | Sector in Project or Amount Amount Cumulative Amount
No. |activity which the Programs outlay spent on the | expenditure | Spent:
identified Project is 1) Local area (budget) | projects or upto to the District or
covered or other project or | programs reporting through
2) Specify the programs | sub : heads period (in implementing
the state and wise 1) District Lacs) agency*
district where (in Lacs) expenditure
projects or on project or
programs was programs
undertaken 2) overheads
(in Lacs)

1 |Vocational Employment | Maharashtra 22.50 22.50 22.50 National Yuva
training enhancing i.e. Sindhudurg Co-operative
program me on | vocational Baramati, Society
back hoe skills Hingoli and (NYCS)
Loader, (Schedule Sangamner
Computer VI (1) (i)

Hardware and
Networking
and plumbing

2 |Vocational Employment | Maharashtra 7.50 7.50 7.50 National Yuva
training enhancing i.e. Tadiwala Co-operative
program me on | vocational Road (Pune), Society
Gift Article skills and Nagpur
& Jewellery Empowering
and Fashion women
Designing (Schedule

VII (1) (ii))

3 |Prime Contribution | Other 35.00 35.00 35.00 Cheque
Minister’s to Prime (Central) given to
National Minister’s Collector
Relief Fund National Relief Office, Pune

Fund
(Schedule
VII (1) (viii)
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4 |Swach Swacha Other 35.00 35.00 35.00 Direct Transfer
Bharat Bharat (Central) to central
Kosh Kosh set Government
up by the
Central
Government
(Schedule
VII (1) (viii))
Total Project Amount : 100.00 Amount Spent (31.03.2015) | 100.00

1. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or
any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount inits Board report.

The Company has spent the entire amount as stipulated as per the Section 135 of Companies Act 2013 and rules made
there under.

2. CSR Committee Responsibility Statement

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives

and Policy of the Company

_-—\_‘-_?"_ o e—
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Donation to Prime Minister Relief Fund under CSR Initiative
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ANNEXURE- "B”

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1. Your company has taken various steps for conservation of energy at various operating Installations. This has

resulted in savings and contributions to environmental Improvements. Some of the energy conservation schemes

are given as under:

a. Energy efficient Canopy lights (LED Type) have been procured and installed; constant efforts are being put to

minimize energy consumption.

b. Installation of APFC at various CNG Stations is under progress; continuous monitoring of power factor to maintain it

at near unity.

2. The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: NIL

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments : 4.8 Lakhs

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

A Efforts made towards technology Absorption

1. Automatic Meter Reading system implemented
in 95 industries

2. Installation of Breakaway coupling in LCV hose

3. Installation of Automatic Power Factor controller
(APFC) panels

4. Compilation of P/L network drawing in soft form

5. Use of Quick Connectorin mobile cascades

B. Benefit derived as result of the above efforts
e.g. product improvement, cost reduction,

product development, import substitution etc.

1. AMR-Automated Meter Reading & Parameters
verification through Remote Monitoring

2. Safety in LCV filling as no chances of Gas loss and
accident due to accidental pulling and
detachment of hose

3. Maintained PF around unity in CNG stations
resultingin saving ofaround Rs.16L.

4. Easy & ready availability of Gas Network (Steel as
well as MDPE) on Computer Systems & Mobiles to
be used to find location &details of P/Lin normal as
well as emergency situation.

5. To prevent Gas Loss & Accident in case of damage
tovalve.
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C. | In case of imported technology (imported during
last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year), following information may be furnished:

I. Technologyimported
ii. Yearofimport NIL
iii. Hastechnology been fully absorbed

iv. If notabsorbed, areaswhere this hasnottaken

place, reasontherefore & future plan of action

D. | Theexpenditureincurred onResearchand Development | NIL

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

The Company is in retail distribution business of Natural Gas in Pune & its surrounding areas. Considering the area of
operation and product of the Company, export related activities are not pertinent.

During the year under review the foreign exchange earnings and outgo are given below:

Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year -

Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows
Foreign exchange used for Dividend payment for FY 13-14 during FY 14-15 $161485
For Interim Dividend for FY 14-15 paid during 14-15. $ 105703
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ANNEXURE- "C”

FORM NO. MR.3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2015

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2015
To,

The Members,
Maharashtra Natural Gas Limited
Pune

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Maharashtra Natural Gas Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on management declaration letter, my verification of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report thatin my opinion,
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanismin place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
forthe financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 according to the provisions of:

i) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings - N.A. -;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBIAct'):-N.A. -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and EmployeeStock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
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(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(vi) and other applicable laws like Maharashtra Fire Prevention and Life Safety Measures Act, 2006, Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, The Bombay Gas Supply Act 1939, OISD
Standards, The Gas Cylinder Rules, 2004, The Bombay Shops & Establishments Act 1948, Maharashtra Labour
Welfare Fund Act 1953, Maharashtra State Tax on Professions, Trade, Calling and Employment Act 1975. In respect of
other laws specifically applicable to the Company, | have relied on the information obtained/records produced over
e-mail by the Company during the course of my audit and the reportingis limited to that extent.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(I) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. - Not applicable to the Company during
Audit period

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s), if applicable;

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1. Company did not have independent directors on its board till 27th March, 2015. Hence the Composition of various
committees prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 like Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee was not strictly in compliance with the respective sections, to the
extent of participation of Independent Directors

2. The Company has not constituted an internal complaints Committee as contemplated by The Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. However the Company has a few
provisions in protection of its women employees as per its Service rules.

3. The company has not adequately complied with the reporting provisions of Maharashtra Fire Prevention and Life
Safety Measures Act, 2006 and rules made there under.

I furtherreportthat

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of ExecutiveDirectors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition ofthe Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried outin compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agendaitems before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of the
minutes.
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I/we further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines,
subject to observations mentioned above.

I/we further report that during the audit period the company has been no instances having a major bearing on the
company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, standards as referred above. However
consequent to the transfer of shares on 28th March, 2015 the company has become a government company within the
meaning of Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013.

For Rajas Bodas & Associates,
Sd/-

Company Secretary

RAJAS BODAS

FCS No. 6005
C.P. No. 5335

Place: Pune
Date: 31/07/2015

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and which forms an integral part of
thisreport.
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To,

Annexure A

The Members,

Maharashtra Natural Gas Limited

Pune

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is to
express an opinion onthese secretarial records based on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3. Ihavenotverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Rajas Bodas & Associates,
Sd/-
Company Secretary
RAJAS BODAS
FCS No. 6005
C.P. No. 5335
Place: Pune

Date: 31/07/2015




"ANNEXURE D"

(As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015)

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014]
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

Sr. No. Particulars Facts
(i) CIN U11102PN2006PLC021839
(ii) Registration Date 13th January, 2006
(iii) Name of the Company Maharashtra Natural Gas Limited
(iv) Category/Sub - Category of the Company Company Limited by Shares
(v) Address of the Registered office and contact details Plot no 27,Narveer TanajiWadi,

PMT Bus Depot, Commercial Building,
First floor, Shivaji Nagar, Pune

Tel: 020 — 25611000

Fax No:020-25511522

email: csritu@mngl.in

website: www.mngl.in

(vi) Whether Listed Company No
(vii) Name, Address and Contact details of UTI Infrastructure Technologies and
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any services Limited

Plot No. 3, Sector 11, Post Bag No. 22,
C.B.D. Belapur, Navi Mumbai 400614
Tel- 022 67931300,

email id: sunil.bhoite@utiitsl.com

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover

main products / services Product/ service of the Company

1 Natural Gas 35202 100

. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES : NIL
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Iv. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital breakup as percentage of total Equity

1) Category-wise Share Holding:
No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end % of
Category of the year of the year Change
of % of % of during
Shareholders . the
Demat | Physical | Total Total | Demat | Physical | Total Total Year
Shares Shares
(A) Promoters
(1) Indian
(a) Individual/HUF Nil 12900 12900 0.01 Nil 12900 12900 0.01 Nil
(b) Central Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(c) State Govt. (s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(d) Bodies Corp. Nil 44987100 | 44987100 | 47.35 Nil 44987100 | 449871000 | 47.35 Nil
(e) Banks / Fl Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(f) Any Other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub - Total (A) (1) Nil 45000000 | 45000000| 47.36 Nil 45000000 | 45000000 | 47.36 Nil
(2) Foreign
(a) NRIs -Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(b) Other-Individuals|  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(c) Bodies Corp. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(d) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(e) Any Other.... Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub- Total (A) (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Shareholding Nil 450000000| 45000000 47.36 Nil 450000000| 45000000 47.36 Nil
of Promoter
(A)=(A) (1)+(A) (2)
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No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end % of
(']
Category of the year of the year Change
of . 3 during
Shareholders . % of . % of the
Demat | Physical | Total Total | Demat | Physical | Total Total Year
Shares Shares
(B) Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions
(a) Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
30000000 | 11111111 |41111111| 43.27 2055556 Nil 2055556 2.16
(b) Banks/F| (95)
(c) Central Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(d) State Govt.(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(e)(\:gep”i:;‘lrfunds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(") 'Cng‘;'s:rfiis Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(g) Flls Nil 8888889 | 8888889 9.36 444444 Nil 444444 2.16 (95)
(h) Foreign Venture Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Capital Funds
(1) Others (Specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub - Total (B)(1) 30000000 | 20000000 | 50000000 | 52.63 | 2500000 Nil 2500000 Nil (95)
(2) Non - Institutions
(a) Bodies Corp
i. Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil 47500000 Nil 47500000 50 50
ii. Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(b) individuals
i. Individual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
up to 1 lakh
ii. Individual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
share holders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of 1 lakh
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(C) Others (Specify)

Sub-Total (B)(2) Nil Nil Nil Nil 47500000 Nil 4750000 50 50
Total Public 30000000 [ 20000000 | 20000000| 52.63 50000000 Nil 50000000 52.63 -
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B) (2)
C. Shares held Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
by custodian
for GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 30000000 | 65000000 | 95000000 100 50000000 | 45000000 | 95000000 100 Nil
(A+B+C)
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters:
Shareholding at the beginning of the . % of
year Shareholding at the end of the year Change
during
Sr. | Shareholder’s No. of % of %of No. of % of %of ;he
No Name Shares total Shares Shares total Shares ear
Shares Pledged / Shares Pledged /
of the encumbered of the encumbe
Company to total Company red
shares to total
shares
1 GAIL (India) 22500000 25.00% 0.00% 22500000 25.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Limited
(GAIL)
including
shares held
jointly with
its
employees.
2 Bharat 22499600 23.68% 0.00% 22499600 23.68% 0.00% 0.00%
Petroleum
Corporation
Limited
Total 44999600 47.36% 0.00% 44999600 47.36% 0.00%

(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):

Sr. No.

Shareholders’
Name

Shareholding at the beginning of
the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of
Shares

% of total Shares
of the Company

No. of Shares

% of total Shares
of the Company

There are no changes in the Promoter’s shareholding during the Financial Year 2014 - 15.
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)
as on 31st March, 2015

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Sr. | For each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of % of total No. of % of total
No Shares Shares of the Shares Shares of the
Company Company
1. |Shri Kamlesh Sharma (Jointly with GAIL)
At the beginning of the Year 3125 0.003 % 3125 0.003 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 3125 0.003 % 3125 0.003 %
2. | Shri N K Nagpal (Jointly with GAIL)
At the beginning of the Year 3125 0.003 % 3125 0.003 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 3125 0.003 % 3125 0.003 %
3. | Shri S C Hatwal(Jointly with GAIL)
At the beginning of the Year 3125 0.003% 3125 0.003%
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 3125 0.003 % 3125 0.003 %
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
4. | Shri Manoj Kumar Pawa (Jointly with GAIL)
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.000% 0 0.000%
Bought during the Year 3125 0.003% 3125 0.003%
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
At the end of the Year 3125 0.003 % 3125 0.003 %
5. | Shri A.K.Bansal
At the beginning of the Year 100 0.00% 100 0.00%
Bought during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
At the end of the Year 100 0.00% 100 0.00%
6. |Shri R.P.Natekar
At the beginning of the Year 100 0.00% 100 0.00%
Bought during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
At the end of the Year 100 0.00% 100 0.00%
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7. |ShriSatish Y. Oke

At the beginning of the Year 100 0.00% 100 0.00%

Bought during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

At the end of the Year 100 0.00% 100 0.00%
8. |IDFC Trustee Co. Ltd A/C

IDFC Infrastructure Fund 2 A/C

IDFC Private Equity Fund Il

At the beginning of the Year 20,000,000 21.05% 20,000,000 21.05%

Bought during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Sold/Transfer during the Year 19000000 20% 19000000 20%

At the end of the Year 1000000 1.05% 1000000 1.05%
9. [IL& FS Trust Company Limited

At the beginning of the Year 11111111 11.69% 11111111 11.69%

Bought during the Year 0 0 0 0

Sold/Transfer during the Year 10555555 11.11% 10555555 11.11%

At the end of the Year 555556 0.58% 555556 0.58%
10. |Axis Bank Limited

At the beginning of the Year 10000000 10.53% 10000000 10.53%

Bought during the Year 0 - 0 -

Sold/Transfer during the Year 9500000 10% 9500000 10%

At the end of the Year 500000 0.53% 500000 0.53%
11. |Shri M. Ravindran (Jointly with GAIL)

At the beginning of the Year 3125 0.003 % 3125 0.003 %

Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %

Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %

At the end of the Year 3125 0.003 % 3125 0.003 %
12. |Shri S.Krishnamurti

At the beginning of the Year 100 0.00% 100 0.00%

Bought during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

At the end of the Year 100 0.00% 100 0.00%
13. |Indraprastha Gas Limited

At the beginning of the Year 0 0 0 0

Bought during the Year 47500000 50% 47500000 50%

Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0 0 0

At the end of the Year 47500000 50% 47500000 50%
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel as on 31st March, 2015:

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Sr. | For each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of % of total No. of % of total
No Shares Shares of the Shares Shares of the
Company Company
1. |ShrilSRao
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
2. |Shri Gajendra Singh
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
3. |ShriB.N.Gosain*
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
4. |Shri A.M.Tambekar*
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
5. |Shri C.K.Jain**
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
6. |[Shril.Vedagiri**
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
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Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
7. |Shri Syamsundar S.G.»
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
8. |Shri Krishna KumarA»
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
9. |ShriVinod Giri*
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
10. |Ms. Padmini KhareA A
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00%
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
11. [Shri. Rajesh Pande”MA
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
12. |Ms. Ritu Aggarwal (CS)
At the beginning of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Bought during the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
Sold/Transfer during the Year 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
At the end of the Year 0 0.00 % 0 0.00 %
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Note: *

Managing Director w.e.f. 17.03.2015

* %

Commercialand CFOw.e.f. 19.08.2014

2014-2015

Shri B.N.Gosain Ceased to be Managing Director w.e.f. 01.02.2015 and Shri A.M.Tambekar joined as

Shri C.K.Jain Ceased to be Director Commercial w.e.f. 31.07.2014 and ShriJ.Vedagirijoined as Diector

A ShriShyamsundarS.G. resigned w.e.f27.05.2014 and ShriVinod Giri joined in his place w.e.f. 24.06.2014

AN

ANN

V. INDEBTEDNESS:

ShriKrishna Kumar and ShriVinod Giriresigned w.e.f. 27.03.2015
Ms. Padmini Khare and Shri Rajesh Pande joined w.e.f. 28.03.2015

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:Rs. 1,70,56,15,809

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANGERIAL PERSONNEL DURING THE FINANCIALYEAR 2014-2015

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr.
No

Particulars of Remuneration*

(Rs. in Lacs)

Total Amount

Name

Shri B.N.
Gosain

Shri A.M.
Tambekar

Shri C.K.

Shri J.

Jain

Vedagiri

Rs. in Lacs

Designation

Managing Director

Director C

ommercial

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

46.67

6.02

18.54

25.76

65.21 31.78

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

1.91

0.32

1.18

2.08

3.09 2.40

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under

section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

as % of profit

others, specify
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5 Others, please specify - - -

Total (A) 48.58 6.34 19.72 27.84 68.30 34.18
Ceiling as perthe Act Remunerationis within ceiling prescribed under Companies
Act, 2013.

B. Remuneration to other Directors:

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

(Rs/Lac)

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board / committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1) No amount was paid to any other

Other Non-Executive Directors Director During FY 2014-15

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify
Total (2)
Total (B)=(1+2)

Ceiling as per the Act**

* Paid to respective parent organizations.

** Remuneration is within ceiling prescribed under Companies Act, 2013.
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

2014-2015

Sr.

Particulars of Remuneration

Total Amount

No.

Name

Shri J.Vedagiri*

Ms. Ritu Aggarwal

(Rs/Lacs)

Designation

WTD &CFO

()

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-

tax Act, 1961

Remuneration of

Shri J. Vedagiri has been
covered under Remuneration
to Directors

6.50

6.50

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit

- others, specify

Others, please specify

Total

6.50

6.50

VII.PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties/punishment/compounding of offences for breach of any Section of Companies Act

against the Company orits Directors or other officers in default, if any, during the financial year 2014-15
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ANNEXURE 'F’
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
NATURAL GAS SCENARIO IN INDIA

Natural gas is the cleaner burning fossil fuel and its environment friendly characteristics make it more popular than other
hydrocarbon fuel. It is playing an increasing role in helping to attain national goals of a cleaner environment, energy
security and a more competitive economy. The primary energy mix of India is also set to alter on account of the
substitution of oil by natural gas which isemerging as animportant componentin the total energy basket.

The share of natural gas is expected to increase significantly in the coming years. Power and Fertilizer sectors remain the
two biggest contributors to natural gas demand in India and the pricing issues are a concern to channelize this demand
into actual consumption. The present supply of natural gas in India is mainly from the nominated blocks, operated by
ONGC and OIL, private and joint venture fields like Panna-Mukta & Tapti (PMT) and from the fields awarded under NELP
like RIL's KG D-6. Government is stepping up all efforts to increase indigenous production of Natural Gas.

With the growing demand for natural gas in India, the gap between domestic demand and availability is met through LNG
imports. Several plans to augment and add regasification capacities on the western and eastern coast of India are under
process to facilitate LNG importsinto India.

CITY GAS DISTRIBUTION IN INDIA

CNG has become a popular fuel for transport sector. Your Company had invited proposals for taking land on long term
lease from private individuals and companies. PESO (Petroleum and Explosive Safety Organization) consent has been
received for most of the presently proposed CNG Stations and other statutory approval work is in process.

Additional MNGL CNG Stations will increase the availability of CNG supply to CNG customers across Pune. All actions has
beentakentoimprove customer service.

Your Company has set up a robust infrastructure of CNG stations and Pipeline network to ensure easy availability of CNG
and PNG toits customers.

Both CNG and PNG business have performed well during the year 2014-15. On overall basis the sales volume (CNG & PNG)
has shown a growth of 31.17 % over the previous year.

During the year, CNG sales volume has increased from 79.08 MMSCM in FY 2013-14 to 105.35 MMSCM in FY 2014-15 and
PNG sales volume have increased from 33.27 MMSCM in FY 2013-14t0 41.97 MMSCM in FY 2014-15 showing a growth of
33.22% and 26.15% respectively.

Company has setup a network of 30 CNG Stations in Pune and PCMCareas as on 31st March 2015 for supplying CNG to the
customers. The Total nos. of vehicles using CNG was 79408 in March 2015. The Company has a wide network of pipeline to
provide PNG connection to 16147 Domestic Customers, 47 Commercial customers and 97 Industrial Customers as on 31st
March, 2015.

OUTLOOK ON OPPORTUNITIES

Introduction of factory fitted CNG engines by leading car manufacturers& considerable increase in number of CNG
stations has given a big boost tothe CNG sector in the cities.

The convenience associated with PNG has already established it as the preferred fuel with its demandgrowing
exponentially in domestic, commercial as well as industrial segments. Due to strict enforcement by various
statutoryauthorities of the norms deterring use of polluting fuels by industries due to environmental concerns, the usage
of Natural Gas while utilizing the existing City Gas Distribution networkis bound to grow.
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The Company hasstrongly established itself in Pune and its surrounding area which have good potential for Natural gasin
the coming years. Your Company has increased the infrastructure of CNG stations and Pipeline network to ensure easy
availability of CNG and PNG to its customers.

Your company is associating with Government agencies like ARAI for studies related to conversion and performance of
CNG vehicles vis-a-vis Diesel vehicles. The results from such studies will be utilized to propose induction of more CNG
vehicles. This will help Central Government's efforts for developing 'green corridors' between cities with established CNG
infrastructure. Maharashtra State Road Transport Corporation (MSRTC) operated bus transport services between
Mumbai and Pune will be potential clients for contributing to this planned green corridor."

Your Company is definitely looking forward to expand its Geographical Area to other feasible Cities through the bidding
process being conducted by PNGRB

OUTLOOK ON THREATS, RISKS & CONCERNS AND MITIGATIONS
Regulatory Regime

The City Gas Distribution business is under Regulatory regime wherein the Regulatory Board (PNGRB) has framed various
Regulations, which have impact on the day to day business operations of a CGD entity.

The Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board (PNGRB) has been inviting bids from time to time for setting up CGD
network in new geographical areas. Your Company intends to participate in the bidding for expanding its area of
operations.

Gas Sourcing

Inthe changing gas scenario, the assured supply of gas at competitive price will play an important role for future growth of
your Company. MoP&NG, Government of India under it's recent guidelines has directed GAIL to allocate supply of gas at
APM Price to your Company based on actual requirement along with a provision to draw 10% over and above the
requested allocation.

In order to cater growing gas demand of industrial & commercial consumers, the Company is procuring R-LNG, both on
term & spot basis.Your company is constantly on the lookout for sourcing cheapest R-LNG supplies for its customers by
signing agreements with more suppliers. This helpsin enrolling new customers and retaining old ones as the price of our

gas remains competitive in comparison to price of alternate fuels. In line with this, besides having gas supply tie ups with
GAIL and BPCL, to strengthen MINGL's gas sourcing portfolio, MNGL has also signed a framework gas supply agreement
with other major R-LNG suppliers viz. Gujrat State Petroleum Corporation Limited (GSPCL), Indian Qil Corporation Ltd.,
etc.The Company is actively looking at a variety of options to meet the expected gas demand in future.

'Market Exclusivity' granted to your company for a period of 5 years came to an end in March, 2014. To mitigate the risk of
existing customers (Industrial & commercial) drifting away to any competitor in future, your company has signed long
term agreements (5 years) with all its major customers to retain them.

Gas Prices

Till August'2014, Limited availability of domestic Gas and mix of RLNG was resulting in high CNG cost to retail customers.
However, under the recently implemented guidelines of MoP&NG, Government of India, additional domestic gas has
been allocated to your Companyfrom October'2014 onwards. This positive development shall help in maintaining gas

selling prices both in CNG and PNG-domestic segment competitive over alternate fuels.
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The Company is fully aware of the challenge to keep the overall procurement cost of gas under check in order to supply
CNG and PNG at competitive price as compared to alternate competing fuels.

VALUE CREATION THOUGH OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

In the competitive environment, creating value for the end customer is of utmost importance for any Company. Your
Company is fully conscious and is continuously working for enhancing operational efficiency through cost optimization
and processimprovement.

INTERNALCONTROL & THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate Internal Control Procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business. The
Company has appointed M/s Gogate& Co., Chartered Accountants as its Internal Auditors and the internal auditor's
reports prepared by them are placed before the Audit Committee.

ENVIRONMENT CONSCIOUSNESS

Natural gas intrinsically being the cleaner of the fossil fuels, it is endeavour of the Company to promote its wider
useamong all categories of prospective customers. Towards this direction, the Company is promoting use ofnatural gas by
domestic consumers as well as by commercial & industrial consumers through sustained campaignswhereby all the users
are made aware of the economical and environmental advantages of natural gas compared to otherfuels, alongwith
assurance of timely and uninterrupted supply of natural gas.

The Company is making continuous efforts to reduce pollutionin Pune and its adjoining areas.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members of Maharashtra Natural Gas Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of MAHARASHTRA NATURAL GAS LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the Accounting and Auditing Standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well
asevaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
onthe standalone financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone

financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at

(49)




C

MNGL

31st March, 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by The Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 issued by the Government of India (Ministry of Corporate
Affairs) in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in Annexure a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary forthe purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

(c) The Company has no branch offices whose accounts are audited by branch auditors.

(d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(e) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(f) There are no observations and comments on financial transactions or other matters which have an adverse effect on
the functioning of the Company.

(g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2015 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directorsis disqualified as on 31st March, 2015 from being appointed as a directorin
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(h) There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations givento us:

i. Refer Note No.28 on Contingent Liabilities disclosing the impact of pending litigation on the financial position of the
company inits financial statements.

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts, having any material foreseeable
losses, for which provision was required.

iii. There are no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M/s.P. G.Bhagwat
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 101118W
Sd/-

Sandeep Rao

Partner

Membership No. 47235

Place:Pune
Date:10.09.2015
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Re: MAHARASHTRA NATURAL GAS LIMITED

Referred toin paragraph 1 underthe heading, “Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report on even
date:

(i) (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

(b) Asinformed to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(i)  (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the inventory of the company
comprises of Gas and same is ascertained on volumetric basis at the yearend.

(b) In our opinion the procedures of physical verification of inventory by way of volumetric method followed by the
managementis reasonable and adequatein relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) On the basis of our examination of the records of inventory, we are of the opinion that the company is
maintaining proper records of inventory. No material discrepancies were noticed on volumetric verification
between the physical stock and the book records.

(iii)  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us there is an adequate internal control
system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory
and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. However, we are of the opinion that maintenance of records
in respect of Capital Work in Progress needs to be more elaborate. During the course of our audit we have not
observed any major weaknesses or continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in internal control system.

(v)  Inouropinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits,
hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under, are not applicable to it. According to
information and explanation given to us, no order has been passed against the company by Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.

(vi)  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company, pursuant to the rules made by the
Central Government for the maintenance of cost records, under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are
of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have generally been maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the records with view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

(vii) a) According to the records of the company, the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax,
Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of such statutory dues which have remained outstanding as at March 31, 2015 for a period of more than six

months from the day they become payable.
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(x)

(xi)
(xii)

b) The disputed statutory dues that have not been deposited on account of disputes pending before the
appropriate authoritiesare as under:

Sr. No.

Particulars

Amount

Forum

1

Sales Tax FY 2009-10

35.22 Lacs

Jt. Commissioner of Sales Tax (Appeal), Pune

c) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no amounts required to be transferred to
Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
(10f1956) and rules made there under.

The Company has no accumulated losses as at March 31, 2015. It has not incurred cash loss during the year and in

theimmediately preceding financial year.

According to the information and explanation given to us the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a

financialinstitution or bank. The Company does not have any debenture holders.

According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken

by others from bank or financial institutions.

The Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the same was raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed by us and according to the information and explanations given to us,

no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

For M/s. P. G. Bhagwat

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 101118W

sd/-

Sandeep Rao
Partner
Membership No.47235

Place:Pune

Date:10.09.2015
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ADDENDUM TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MAHARASHTRA NATURAL GAS LIMITED

Report on the Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India

As required by the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India with reference to accounts of the

com

pany fortheyear 2014-15, we report that:

1. If the Company has been selected for disinvestment, a complete status report in terms of valuation of Assets
(including intangible assets and land) and Liabilities (including Committed & General Reserves) may be examined
including the mode and present stage of disinvestment process.”

Accordingtotheinformation and explanation given to usthe company is not selected for the disinvestment.

2. Pleasereportwhetherthere are any cases of waiver/ write off of debts/loans/interest etc., if yes, the reasons therefor
andthe amountinvolved.

On the basis of our examination of the records and according to explanation given to us, we are of the opinion that
thereis nowaiver / write off of debts/ loans/interest etc.

3. Whether proper records are maintained for inventories lying with third parties & assets received as gift from Govt. or
other authorities
On the basis of our examination of the records of inventory and according to explanation given to us, we are of the
opinion that the company is maintaining proper records of Gas stock lying with the third parties and the company
during the yearhas not received any asset as gift from Govt. or other authorities.

4. A report on age-wise analysis of pending legal/ arbitration cases including the reasons of pendency and existence/
effectiveness of a monitoring mechanism for expenditure on all legal cases(foreign and local) may be given.
Accordingtothe information and explanation given to us the details are furnished in Annexure - |

For M/s P G Bhagwat

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 101118W

sd/-

Sandeep Rao

Partner

Membership No.47235

Place:Pune
Date : September 24,2015
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ANNEXURE - |

PENDING LEGAL / ARBITRATION CASES

Start

Monitoring Mechanism

Amount (Rs.) Details Year Reasons for Pendency for Expenditure
1 Tekwade 1,826,974.000 | Arbitration | Sept-13 | Tekwade was awarded | Till date only relevant
Service for contract for providing Light [expenditure like
Station LCV Hire Commercial Vehicles(LCV) |Arbitrator Fees, Legal
Charges on hire basis to transport Advocate Fees and other
Contract Gas through Cascades from related expenses, if any
. have been incurred and
one location to another.
Party filed suit in Court for all th.e expenses have
) been incurred only after
payment of pending obtaining prior approval
amountagainst the bill of Competent Authority
MNGL filed counter claim
on the party for non
performance of contract
Matter is pending mainly
because of delay in filing
replies and frequent
adjournmentstaken by
M/s Tekwade
Currently matter is under
Verification by court in
respect of counter claim
filed by MNGL
2 | Taurant 310,600,000.00 | Arbitration | Feb-12 | This party was awarded|Till date only relevant
Projects for Steel contract for laying of Steel[expenditure like
Limited Pipeline Pipeline which it could not|Arbitrator Fees, Legal
and HDD complete within scheduled | Advocate Fees and other
Laying time. Hence MNGL issued | related expenses, if any
Contract.

notice to party to complete
the work. Against MNGL
notice, Party filed claim in
the court demanding
pending amounts against
bill.

have been incurred and
all the expenses have
been incurred only after
obtaining prior approval
of Competent Authority

Aterwards matter went to
Arbitration. On 04.06.15,
Arbitrator gave award for
settlement against claims
made by MNGL and Party.

However, Party didn't accept
Arbitration award and went
for appeal against the same.
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Amount (Rs.)

Details

Start
Year

Reasons for Pendency

2014-2015

Monitoring Mechanism
for Expenditure

3 | GAIL 73,000,000.00 | NAPM Apr-14 | MINGL received 2 Debit No Expenditure
(India) Debit Note Notes vide e mail from GAIL incurred till date
Limited pertaining for recovery of differential

to period price including royalty,
01.02.12 transportation, marketing
To margin, VAT, etc on
30.11.13 prorportionate NAPM gas
not supplied during the period
accepted 01.02.2012t001.10.2013
by MNGL
MNGL did not accept the
claim against these debit
notes stating that NAPM
gas has not been supplied
to MNGL during the period
mentioned in debit notes

4 | Departm 3,547,000.00 | Appeal Jul-14 | pepartment Disallowed | MNGL has incurred
ent of Against VAT Set off of parties stating | relevant expenditure
Sales Assessmen party has not deposited the | like Interim Stay Fee,
Tax, t order of same to Government|Appeal Fee and
Maharas Sales Tax Treasury. However, MNGL | Consultant Fee for the
htra for the . was right in taking the | same only after prior

2009-10 credit of VAT Set off as | approval of competent
proper Tax Invoice was | authority
issued forthe same.
Hence MNGL went for | Interim Stay 25000/-
Appeal against Assessment | accounted as Duty paid
Order in the month of June | under protest and Rs
14 and Intimation for | 1025/-for Appeal + Amit
hearing on the same is not | Shewade Rs. 56180/-
yetreceived
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CORAMTANTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND ALHTON GENERAL OF INDILA UNDER SECTION 14308)5]
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANDAL STATEMENTS OF MAHARESHTRA NATURAL
GAS LIMITED {MNGL) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

The preparation of firancis maamenti of Mahirinheia Nalers! Gas Limited [KBGL} for the
yirar ended 31 March 1015 @ accordance with the finencial repooteg framework prewcribad undér
the Companies &ct, 2003 ks the responsibiity of the masagement of the compasy, The statubory
aufitor appointed by the Compirolier and Auditor Generad of india under section 1397} of the &t s
meaporaible for prpriiding epinion on the Tineros| sLatementy wnder sectinon 147 of the &t Bated on
Idependent audit in accordance with stendards om auditing prascribed under section L4310 of 1he
iy, This i stsded 1o have been dore by them vide their Aait Report dated 10 Segeember 2025,

Lmﬂéﬁhlfﬂﬁ“ﬂﬂmﬁrﬂl@fhﬂﬂﬂﬂhﬂmﬂﬂﬂlﬂl
supplerrenkery sudi wnder seclion 145{0(a) of the Act of the Brandal statemenis of Maharashira
Watural Gas Limited for the year emfsd 31 Manch 50705, This supplementary wudit hes been tamied
oul independsatly wiitfoed sooeit 0 the working papess of the stalstory sudfors and o limited
Aty 10 ngquirsss of The statuisry salitor and cormpany perannel andd 8 seleciee Bramination
ol sorve of the aotounting reconss. On the Baki of my sadit rothing shpsificant kas conse 1 Fry
inowhkedge which winuld gve rise 1O any COMEment uion 0F wufgiement 50 Malaory ssSsor repar

Far and on the behalf of the
Comgtrnlier & Auditer General of rdia
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7
Place: Mumbal 4
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2015

(Rs. in Lacs)
Sr. | PARTICULARS Note| Figures as at the end of Figures as at the end of
No. No. | current reporting period previous reporting period
ending on March 31,2015 ending on March 31,2014
I. | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

(a) Share Capital 3 9,500.00 9,500.00

(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 11,090.55 7,258.65
20,590.55 16,758.65

2. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Long Term Borrowings 5 11,905.40 9,110.41

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 6 1,468.12 1,104.27

(c) Other Long-Term Liabilities 7 1,757.31 1,354.47

(d) Long-Term Provisions 8 60.50 85.16
15,191.32 11,654.31

3. CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Trade Payables 9 1,999.58 1,915.41

(b) Other Current Liabilities 10 6,527.15 6,736.67

(c) Short Term Provisions 11 542.78 1,420.74
9,069.51 10,072.81

TOTAL 44,851.38 38,485.77

Il. | ASSETS

1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS

A. Fixed Assets

(i) Tangible Assets 12 17,478.16 16,879.53

(i) Intangible Assets 13 494.34 9.57

(iii) Capital Work-In-Progress 16,110.59 13,462.29

B. Other Non-Current Assets 14 396.33 321.98
34,479.42 30,673.37

2. CURRENT ASSETS

A. Inventories 15 49.17 38.28

B. Trade Receivables 16 5,125.51 3,910.28

C. Cash and Bank Balances 17 4,574.54 2,820.95

D. Short-Term Loans and Advances 18 497.80 816.32

E. Other Current Assets 19 124.93 226.57
10,371.95 7,812.40

TOTAL 44,851.38 38,485.77

Contingent liabilities and commitments 28 - -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 - -

As per our report of even date attached

For M/s P G Bhagwat For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration Number: 101118W

Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sandeep Rao I.S.Rao A.M. Tambekar J. Vedagiri Ritu Aggarwal
Partner (Chairman) (Managing Director) (CFO) (Company Secretary)

Membership No : 47235

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10th September, 2015
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2015
(Rs. in Lacs)
S.NO PARTICULARS Note | Figures as at the end of Figures as at the end of
No. | current reporting period previous reporting period
ending on March 31,2015 ending on March 31,2014
I. | Revenue from Operations (Gross) 20 49,718.36 37,445.54
Less: Excise Duty 4,137.33 2,821.35
Il. | Revenue from Operations (Net) 45,581.03 34,624.19
Other Income 21 341.27 110.87
lll. | TOTAL REVENUE (I + 11) 45,922.31 34,735.06
IV. | EXPENSES:
Purchase of Natural Gas 22 30,942.89 21,418.26
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-trade 23 (10.88) (25.71)
Employee Benefits Expense 24 855.48 648.03
Finance Costs 25 534.88 478.66
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 26 1,457.96 879.96
Other Expenses 27 4,352.78 3,086.55
TOTAL EXPENSES 38,133.11 26,485.75
V. | PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL AND
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS AND TAX (Il - 1V) 7,789.20 8,249.31
VI. | Prior Period Income - -
VII. | PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
AND TAX (V- VI) 7,789.20 8,249.31
VIII. | Extraordinary Items - -
IX. | PROFIT BEFORE TAX (VII - VIII) 7,789.20 8,249.31
X. | TAX EXPENSE
1. Current Tax 2,365.00 2,392.84
2. Deferred Tax 366.49 446.38
XlI. | PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (IX - X) 5,057.71 5,410.09
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 5,057.71 5,410.09
Xll. | Earning Per Equity Share
Basic & Diluted EPS
(One Equity Share of Rs. 10 each) 5.32 5.69
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies| 2 - -
As per our report of even date attached
For M/s P G Bhagwat For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration Number: 101118W
Chartered Accountants
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sandeep Rao I.S.Rao A.M. Tambekar J. Vedagiri Ritu Aggarwal
Partner (Chairman) (Managing Director) (CFO) (Company Secretary)

Membership No : 47235

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10th September, 2015
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.3.2015

(Rs. in Lacs)
PARTICULARS Figures as at the end of Figures as at the end of
current reporting period previous reporting period
ending on March 31,2015 ending on March 31,2014
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax 7,789.20 8,249.31
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 1,457.96 879.96
Excess Provision Written back (1.112) -
Loss on Sale of assets - 0.10
Interest paid 481.75 471.12
Interest received (69.87) 1,868.73 (49.03) 1,302.15
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 9,657.93 9,551.46
Movements in Working Capital
Inventories (10.89) (25.71)
Trade and Other receivable (2,018.14) (3,318.37)
Trade and Other Paybles 607.77 (1,421.26) 6,836.52 3,492.44
Cash Generated from Operations 8,236.67 13,043.90
Direct Taxes paid (2,378.37) (2,392.84)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities A 5,858.30 10,651.06
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES.
Purchase of Fixed Assets/ Capital Work in Progress (5,579.50) (8,531.13)
Sale of Fixed Assets - 5.56
Interest Received 69.87 49.03
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities B (5,509.63) (8,476.54)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 2,795.01 (646.72)
Interest paid (450.50) (471.12)
Dividend and Tax Thereon (2,099.79) (883.29)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities C 244.72 (2,001.13)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash
Equivalents (A+B+C) 593.39 173.39
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at beginning of the Year 2,369.10 2,195.71
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at end of the Year 2,962.49 2,369.10
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents as at end
of the Year
Cash, Cheques & Stamps on Hand 18.85 32.81
with Banks - in current Accounts 2,943.64 2,336.29
As per our report of even date attached
For M/s P G Bhagwat For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration Number: 101118W
Chartered Accountants
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sandeep Rao I.S.Rao A.M. Tambekar J. Vedagiri Ritu Aggarwal
Partner (Chairman) (Managing Director) (CFO) (Company Secretary)

Membership No : 47235

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10th September, 2015
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Maharashtra Natural Gas Limited (‘MNGL’) is a Company incorporated in January 2006 to meet the City Gas
distribution needs of Pune and adjoining areas. MNGL has got the PNGRB authorization for city gas distribution in
Pune & Pimpri-Chinchwad city including adjoining areas of Hinjewadi, Chakan & Talegaon.

MNGL is a joint venture Company of two navratna PSUs viz. Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited (BPCL) and Gas
Authority of India Limited (GAIL), with the mission to supply clean and green (eco-friendly) fuel.

Main business objectives of the company are as under:-

e Toprovide clean, environment friendly green fuel as an alternative to the conventional auto fuels like Petrol and
Diesel and

e To provide safe, convenient and reliable piped natural gas to its customers in the domestic, commercial and
industrial sectors.

While transport sector will use Compressed Natural Gas (CNG), the domestic, commercial and industrial sectors
will use Piped Natural Gas (PNG)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material
respects with the accounting standards notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended)
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements are consistent with those followed in the previous year

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statement and the results of operations during the
reporting year end. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carryingamounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Revenue Recognition

e Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue from operations is net of trade discount, excise duty, sales tax /
value added tax and adjustments, if any.

e Revenue on sale of Piped Natural Gas (PNG) is recognized based on completion of delivery. Sales are billed bi-
monthly for domestic customers, monthly for commercial customers and fortnightly for industrial customers.
Revenue on sale of Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) is recognized on sale of gas to customers from retail outlets;

e Committed revenue from customers for gas sales and gas transmission is recognized if it is not unreasonable to

expect ultimate collection of revenue from buyers.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
rate applicable andin consonance with the mutually agreed terms.

Tangible Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises
the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and any attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets which
take substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the
period till such assets are ready to be put to use. Any trade discounts and rebates and costs recovered from the
customers towards the cost of assets are adjusted in arriving at the cost of the assets.

Capital Inventory represents items of capital nature lying in the Stores and is valued at cost. Capital spares are
capitalised with the cost of the plantand machinery and depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

Expenditure incurred during the period of construction including all direct and indirect expenses, incidental to
construction are carried forward and on completion, the costs are allocated to the respective fixed assets

Gas distribution systems are commissioned on commencement of supply of gas to consumers. In the case of
commissioned assets where final payment to the Contractors is pending, capitalization is made on an estimated
basis pending receipt of final bills from the Contractors, and is subject to adjustment in cost and depreciation in
theyear of final settlement.

Depreciation ontangible fixed assets

Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method on the basis of useful lives of assets as prescribed under
schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 or as determined by the management based on internal technical
evaluation, which is asfollows:

Asset Lifein Years

Mother Compressors, online compressors and Booster Compressors 7 years
Computers and Mobile Phones 3 years
Signages 10 years
Furniture & Fittings 10 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Fire Fighting Equipments 15 years
Pipeline 20 years
Plant & Machinery — other than compressors and pipeline 20 years
Vehicles 8 years
Building 60 years

Depreciation on additions / deletions is charged on pro-rata basis. Assets individually costing less than or equal to

Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets are stated at cost

less accumulated amortization. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful

economic life. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over a period of 3 years, which is estimated to

be the useful life of the asset.
IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specificto the
asset.

After impairment, depreciation / amortization is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

Animpairmentloss can be reversed if there are changes in estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
in future periods. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying amount of asset does not
exceed the netbookvalue that would have been determined; if noimpairment loss has been recognized.

Inventories

Stock of CNG in Cascades and PNG in pipelines has been valued at lower of cost computed on First in First out (FIFO)

basis or Net Realizable value. Closing stock of PNG in pipelines has been estimated on volumetric basis.

Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current
investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly
attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. Current investments are carried at lower of
cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost.
However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of
theinvestments.

Ondisposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged
or credited to the statement of profitand loss

Employee Benefits Expenditure

e Contribution to Provident Fund (PF): Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined

contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions to the provident fund are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable
to the government administered provident fund.

Gratuity: The Company makes contributions to the ‘Employees Group Gratuity Scheme’ of ‘The Life Insurance
Corporation of India Limited (LIC)". Provision towards gratuity, a defined benefit plan, is made for the difference

between actuarial valuation by anindependent actuary and the fund balance, as at the year-end.
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The cost of providing benefits under gratuity is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit method at each year end. Actuarial gains and losses are immediately taken to statement of
profitandloss and are not deferred.

e Leave Encashment: The accrued liability for leave encashment is accounted for on the basis of Actuarial
Valuation carried out by an independent Actuary. The Leave Encashment is accounted on accrual basis as and
when earned by the employee. Actuarial gains and losses are immediately taken to statement of profit and loss
and are not deferred.

Borrowing Costs

e Borrowing costs, that are directly attributable to acquisition / construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized
until the time all substantial activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are
complete. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use/sale.

e All other borrowing costs not eligible for inventorisation / capitalization are charged to statement of profit and
loss.

Foreign Currency Transaction

¢ Initial Recognition : Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date
of the transaction.

e Conversion: Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate.

e Exchange Differences: Exchange Differences arising on the settlement / conversion on foreign currency are
includedinthe Statement of Profit & Loss.

Taxes onIncome

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable

income for the year as determined in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Deferred taxis recognized on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and accounting

income for the year. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing differences at the end of accounting

period based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed

depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognized if there is a virtual certainty supported by convincing

evidence that there will be sufficient future taxable income to realize such assets. Other deferred tax assets are
recognized if there is areasonable certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income to realize such assets.

At each reporting date the company reassesses the unrecognized deferred tax assets and reviews the deferred tax

assets recognized

Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing

evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT

credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in

Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit

to the statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each

balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer
convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normalincome tax during the specified period
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Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Company recognizes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
arereviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not
recognized in financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and in short-
terminvestments with an original maturity of three months or less and which are not earmarked.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share is computed by dividing Profit after tax (PAT) for the year attributable to equity share
holders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
theyear.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item,
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss account.

Proposed Dividend

Dividend as proposed by the Board of Directors, including tax thereon is provided in the Books of Account pending

approval atthe Annual General Meeting.
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(Rs. in Lacs)
Sr. PARTICULARS Figures as at the Figures as at the
No. current reporting period previous reporting period
ending on March 31,2015 | ending on March 31, 2014
3 | SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED:
10,00,00,000 (Previous Year 10,00,00,000)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each 10,000.00 10,000.00
10,000.00 10,000.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED& PAID UP
9,50,00,000 (Previous Year 9,50,00,000)
Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/- Each 9,500.00 9,500.00
Total 9,500.00 9,500.00
a. Reconcilliation of the equity shares outstanding
at the beginning and at the end of the reporting
period.
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the
accounting period 9,50,00,000 (Previous Year
9,50,00,000)
Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/- Each 9,500.00 9,500.00
Additions During the Year - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the accounting
period
9,50,00,000 (Previous Year 9,50,00,000)
Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/- Each 9,500.00 9,500.00

b. Terms /rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity share is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity
shares held by the shareholders.

Sr.

No.

PARTICULARS

C. Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares

in the Company(Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

GAIL (INDIA) LIMITED 2 3.67% (23.67%)
BPCL 23.68%  (23.68%)
Indraprastha Gas Limited 50.00% (-)

IDFC 1.05%  (21.05%)
IL&FS 0.58% (11.69%)
AXIS BANK 0.53% (10.53%)
PAN ASIA 0.47%  (09.36%
Other Individials (Jointly with GAIL) - (-)

Other Individuals - (-)

(Rs. in Lacs)
Figures as at the current | Figures as at the previous
reporting period ending | reporting period ending
on March 31,2015 on March 31, 2014
No. of Shares No. of Shares
(In Lacs) (In Lacs)
224.88 224.88
225.00 225.00
475.00 -
10.00 200.00
5.56 111.10
5.00 100.00
4.44 88.90
0.12 0.12
0.00 0.00
950.00 950.00
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(Rs. in Lacs)

Sr. PARTICULARS Figures as at the Figures as at the
No. current reporting period previous reporting period
ending on March 31,2015 | ending on March 31, 2014
4 | RESERVES AND SURPLUS
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
As per last Balance Sheet 7,258.67 3,093.39
Add : Profit for the year 5,057.71 5,410.09
Less: Adjustment for depreciation
as per Schedule Il to the Companies 4.98 -
Act, 2013 (Net of Deferred Tax 2.64) 12,311.39 8,503.48
Less : Appropriations Interim
Dividend on Equity Shares 712.50 -
Final Dividend on Equity Shares 304.00 1,064.00
Tax on Interim Dividend 142.46 -
Tax on Final Dividend 61.89 180.83
11,090.55 7,25.65
5 | LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Secured Term Loan from Bank * 11,905.40 9,110.41
11,905.40 9,110.41
* Current maturities of long term borrowings have been reported separately under Note10.
Security : Exclusive first charge on Fixed Assets (moveable and immovable) of the Company, both present
and future and second charge on receivables, current assets etc of the company.
Terms of Repayment : Terms of repayment of loan - 20 equated quarterly installments of Rs 12.50 Crores
each starting fromJune 30, 2015 onwards.
6 | DEFERRED TAXLIABILITIES

Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
Depreciation/Amortization charged for the period
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Impact of Expenditure charged to P&L in the

current period but allowed for tax calculations

on payment basis:

- Leave Encashment

- Gratuity

- Other

Total Deferred Tax Assets
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

1,491.39 1,134.93
23.28 30.56
= 0.10
23.28 30.66
1,468.12 1,104.27
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(Rs. in Lacs)
Sr. PARTICULARS Figures as at the Figures as at the
No. current reporting period previous reporting period
ending on March 31,2015 | ending on March 31, 2014
7 | OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Security Deposits From Customers 1,757.31 1,354.47
1,757.31 1,354.47
8 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Provision for Leave Encashment 60.50 84.85
Provision for Gratuity - 0.30
60.50 85.16
9 | TRADE PAYABLES
Net Trade Payables 1,999.58 1,915.41
1,999.58 1,915.41
10 | OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Maturities Of Long Term Debts # 5,000.00 5,000.00
Interest accrued and due 150.76 119.51
Deposits (Earnest Money Deposit) 66.63 50.30
TDS Payable 24.65 71.75
Other taxes Payable 234.92 163.34
Advance from Customers 59.49 30.78
Capital Creditors 696.33 1,079.74
Others 133.22 140.54
Security Deposit 161.14 80.71
6,527.15 6,736.67
# Non- current maturities of long term debts have been reported separately under Note 5
11 | SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
(A) Provisions For Employee Benefits - -
Provision for Leave Encashment 6.76 5.07
(B) Others
Provision for taxation (Net of advance taxes) 170.14 170.84
Final Dividend on Equity Shares 304.00 1,064.00
Tax on Final Dividend 61.89 180.83
542.78 1,420.74
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Note No.12 - (Rs. in Lacs)
TANGIBLE ASSETS
PARTICULARS Land Building| Plant& Plant & Computers | Office | Furniture | Vehicles Total
Machinery | Machinery Equip- and
-1* 11# ments Fixture
GROSS BLOCK
Opening Balance 264.60 -1 10,122.22| 1,672.93 39.92 | 78.84 87.19 3.64 |12,269.34
ason 01-04-2013
Additions - 83.31| 5,566.73| 1,132.83 10.55 3.05 37.23 - | 6,833.69
Adjustments - - - - - - - - -
Borrowing Costs - - 379.26 43.83 - - - - 423.09
Other Adjustments - - (5.35) - - - - - (5.35)
Disposals - - - - (0.84) | (0.51) - - (1.35)
Closing Balance
as on 31-03-2014 | 264.60 83.31| 16,062.86| 2,849.59 49.63 | 81.38| 124.42 3.64 |19,519.42
Additions - -| 1,358.26 423.12 12.31 1.10 0.17 4.37 | 1,799.33
Adjustments
Borrowing Costs - - 117.54 39.95 - - - - 157.49
Other Adjustments - - - - - - - - -
Disposal - - - - - - - - -
Closing Balance
as on 31-03-2015 | 264.60 83.31| 17,538.66| 3,312.67 61.94 | 82.48| 124.59 8.01 |21,476.24
DEPRECIATION
Depreciation as at
01-04-2013 - - 1,121.06 575.66 27.39 | 20.70 21.02 2.33 | 1,768.16
Charge for the year - 0.54 638.56 305.96 5.21 6.01 7.20 0.35 963.83
Other Adjustments - - 0.42 (89.13) (1.28) | (0.17) - (0.88) (91.04)
Disposals - - - - (0.84) | (0.20) - - (1.04)
Closing Balance
ason 31-03-14 - 0.54| 1,760.04 792.50 30.48 | 26.34 28.22 1.80 | 2,639.89
Charge forthe year
(Refer Note - 14 861.77 451.25 1144 | 16.86 14.51 0.96 | 1,358.19
No.30[c]
Other Adjustments - - - - - - - - -
Disposal - - - - - - - - -
Closing Balance
as on 31-03-2015 - 1.93| 2,621.81| 1,243.75 41.92 | 43.20 42.73 2.76 | 3,998.08
NET BLOCK
As on 01-04-2014 | 264.60 82.77| 14,302.82| 2,057.10 19.15| 55.04 96.20 1.84 |16,879.54
As on 31-03-2015 | 264.60 81.38| 14,916.85| 2,068.92 20.02 | 39.28 81.85 5.25 [17,478.16

The amount of borrowing cost shown under adjustments reflect the accumulated borrowing cost transferred from CWIP
on capitalisation.
*-P & M- Plant & Machinery excludes Compressors. #-P & M Il - Includes Compressors only.
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Note No.13 (Rs. in Lacs)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
PARTICULARS Software Total
GROSS BLOCK
Opening Balance as on 01-04-2013 63.41 63.41
Additions 6.48 6.48
Disposals - -
Closing Balance as on 31-03-2014 69.89 69.89
Additions 592.16 592.16
Disposals - -
Closing Balance as on 31-03-15 662.05 662.05
AMORTIZATION
Amortization as at 01-04-2013 53.15 53.15
Charge for the year 7.80 7.80
Other Adjustment (0.63) (0.63)
Closing Balance as on 31-03-2014 60.32 60.32
Charge for the year 107.39 107.39
Other Adjustments - -
Disposals - -
Closing Balance as on 31-03-15 167.71 167.71
NET BLOCK
As on 01-04-2014 9.57 9.57
As on 31-03-2015 494.34 494.34

There are no internally generated intangible assets.
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(Rs. in Lacs)
Sr. PARTICULARS Figures as at the Figures as at the
No. current reporting period previous reporting period
ending on March 31,2015 | ending on March 31, 2014
14 | NON CURRENT ASSETS:
Capital Advance 31.89 33.08
Security Deposit 152.22 147.77
Earmarked Fixed Deposits 212.22 141.13
396.33 321.98
15| INVENTORIES
Finished Goods; 49.17 38.28
(Valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.)
49.17 38.28
16 | TRADE RECEIVABLES (Net )
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
a) Outstanding for a period exceeding six
months from the due date 241.22 6.13
b) Others 4,884.29 3,904.15
5,125.51 3,910.28
17 | CASH & BANK BALANCES
Cash and Bank Balances
Cash including cheques in hand 18.85 32.81
Balance with banks (Current Account) 2,943.64 2,336.29
Other Bank Balances
- Earmarked Balance with Bank for Unpaid Dividend - 0.01
- In Fixed Deposit - -
Maturity within 12 months :
Earmarked 612.05 451.84
Others 1,000.00 -
4,574.54 2,820.95
18 | SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise
specified)
(1) Advances to Vendors & Employees 1.48 -
(2) Security Deposits 39.86 27.87
(3) Receivable from Revenue Authorities
- Cenvat Recoverable 381.60 736.14
- VAT Recoverable 20.20 10.31
- Balance with Income Tax 54.66 41.99
497.80 816.32
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(Rs. in Lacs)
Sr. PARTICULARS Figures as at the Figures as at the
No. current reporting period previous reporting period
ending on March 31,2015 | ending on March 31, 2014
19| OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:
Unbilled Revenue 66.01 189.98
Prepaid Expenses 53.70 33.80
Prepaid Gratuity 2.43 -
Interest Receivable 2.79 2.79
124.93 226.57
20| REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products (Gross) 49,718.36 37,445.54
Less: Excise Duty 4,137.33 2,821.35
Revenue From Operations (Net) 45,581.03 34,624.19
21| OTHER INCOME
Interest Income 69.87 49.03
Other Operating Income 271.40 61.84
341.27 110.87
22| PURCHASE OF NATURAL GAS
Natural Gas Cost 30,942.89 21,418.26
30,942.89 21,418.26
23| CHANGES IN INVENTORIES
Stock-in-trade
At the beginning of the Accounting Period 38.28 12.57
At the end of the Accounting Period 49.17 38.28
(10.88) (25.71)
24| EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaraies, Wages and Bonus 723.11 487.73
Secondment Expenses 101.51 102.41
Contribution to Provident and other fund 36.51 32.18
Gratuity (Exp) 7.95 7.40
Compensated Absence (21.97) 13.76
Staff Welfare 8.37 4.55
855.48 648.03
25| FINANCE COSTS
Interest on borrowing 477.29 446.10
Bank charges 53.13 25.02
Other 4.46 7.54
534.88 478.66
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(Rs. in Lacs)
Sr. PARTICULARS Figures as at the Figures as at the
No. current reporting period previous reporting period

ending on March 31,2015 | ending on March 31, 2014

26| DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on tangible assets 1,350.57 963.83

Amortization on intangible assets 107.39 7.80

Depreciation for earlier years - (91.67)
1,457.96 879.96

27| OTHER EXPENSES
1. Consumption of Fuel

Power & Fuel 618.31 530.40
Captive Consumption / Losses 1,313.78 740.11
Ethyl Mercaptan 4.24 1.68
1,936.32 1,272.19
2. Administrative Expenses
Vehicle Hiring Charges 68.19 79.13
Annual Day & Other Events Expenses 24.56 24.92
Subscription / Membership Fees 3.74 2.27
(Journal/recreations,etc.)
Electricity Expenses 11.84 11.85
Stautory Charges & Taxes (Rates & Taxes) 107.21 40.38
General Expenses 2.31 0.37
Rent for Office, Warehouse, CNG Stations, etc. 222.48 109.89
Insurance (Assets, Health, etc.) 25.26 9.64
Legal Expenses 28.11 30.67
News Paper & Periodicals 1.43 1.43
Postage & Courier Exp. and Telephone Exp. 23.12 16.56
Professional fees 49.81 29.90
Printing & Stationery 9.90 13.46
Loss on sale of Assets - 0.10
Repairs to Machinery 0.20 0.17
Repairs & Maintenance (General) 25.26 14.90
Security Agency Expenses 55.00 52.44
Recruitment Expenses 0.47 3.64
Training and Seminar Expenses 24.45 23.12
Safety Expenses 5.30 5.10
House Keeping Expenses 20.39 13.02

Conference Expenses (Board Meeting Expenses) 3.96 2.90
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ending on March 31,2015

(Rs. in Lacs)
Sr. PARTICULARS Figures as at the Figures as at the
No. current reporting period previous reporting period

ending on March 31, 2014

Travelling Expenses

Prior Period Expenses

Stores and Spares Consumed
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
SAP Support Costs

Professional Fees include Auditors'
Remuneration as follows:

(a) Statutory Audit Fees

(b) Income Tax Audit Fees

(c) Tax Representation

3. Selling & Distribution Expenses

Advertisement Exps./Business & Sales Promotion Exp

Commision
CNG Cascade Transport Charges
Marketing Expenses (DMA Charges)

4. Operations and Maintenance Expenses

CNG
PNG

27.26 46.68
= 13.69
8.08 40.23
100.00 -
94.41 -
942.76 586.46
3.24 2.44
3.64 1.78
3.44 1.12
12.90 23.43
43.62 48.08
354.86 445.61
11.32 24.80
422.70 541.92
878.49 558.54
172.50 127.44
1,051.00 685.98
4,352.78 3,086.55
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28 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
A Contingent Liabilities
1 Letters of Credit issued to the Suppliers are Rs. 2095.13 Lacs (Previous Year Rs 2879.69 Lacs)
2 Bank Guarantees - Rs. 3349.81 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 990.90 Lacs)
3 Appeal filed in respect of disputed demands:
- Sales Tax for FY 2009-10 Rs. 35.47 lakhs (Previous Year Rs 35.47 Lacs)
4 Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt Rs. 3848.27 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 3118.27 Lacs)
B Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for is Rs. 5387.77
Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 2290.70 Lacs).

29 Segment Reporting

The company operates in a single segment of city gas distribution in Pune and adjoining areas and there are no
separate reportable segments and therefore the disclosure requirements under Accounting Standard 17 on “Segment
Reporting” notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

30 Others

a) As per the information available with the company, none of the suppliers has informed about their having
registered themselves under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. As such
information required under this act cannot be compiled and disclosed.

b

—

Non Refundable Deposits made with the concerned authorities for Railway crossings, river crossings, removal and
laying of electric/ telephone poles and lines are accounted as Fixed Assets / Capital work in progress on the basis of
work done/ confirmation from concerned Departments.

c) Pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 (“the act”) effective from 01 April, 2014, the company has revised depreciation
rates on fixed assets as per the useful life specified in Part “C” of Schedule Il of the act or as per the estimates based
on Internal Technical Evaluation made by the management. As result of this change, the depreciation charge for the
year ended 31 March 2015 is higher by Rs 67.62 Lacs. In respect of the assets whose useful life is already exhausted
ason 01 April 2014 depreciation of Rs. 7.62 Lacs, net of Deferred tax of Rs. 2.64 Lacs, amounting to Rs. 4.98 Lacs has

been adjusted in Retained Earnings in accordance with the requirements of the Schedule Il of the Act.
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31 Related Parties Disclosure - AS 18:
Names and Relationship of Transacting Parties
No. Name Relationship
1 GAIL (India) Limited Significant Influence
2 Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd. (BPCL) Significant Influence
3 Indraprastha Gas Limited Significant Influence
Key Management Personnel and their Relatives :
No. Name Relationship
1 Mr. B.N.Gosain (Upto January 31, 2015) Managing Director
Mr. A.M.Tambekar (From February 04,2015) Managing Director
2 Mr. C. K. Jain (Upto July 31,2015) Director (Commercial)
Mr. J. Vedagiri (From August 1, 2015) Director (Commercial)
Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions : (Rs. in Lacs)
Sr. PARTICULARS Figures as at the Figures as at the
No. current reporting period previous reporting period
ending on March 31,2015 | ending on March 31, 2014
1 BPCL
Sales 5,562.17 6,418.89
Purchases 5,157.02 2,626.27
Salaries, Allowances & Other related payments 49.87 40.01
Reimbursement of expenses 1.25 1.02
Trade Receivable 522.54 567.42
Trade Payable 115.37 392.34
Expenses payable 7.43 15.58
Interim Dividend Paid 168.75 -
Proposed Dividend 72.00 252.00
2 GAIL
Purchases* 24,222.41 19,921.02
Salaries, Allowances & Other related payments 43.68 53.87
Reimbursement of expenses 4.04 5.77
Trade Payable 1,185.05 1,146.38
Expenses payable 7.02 3.57
Interim Dividend Paid 168.75 -
Proposed Dividend 72.00 252.00

* Including Transmission Charges

(76)
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32 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Defined Contribution Plan:

Company's contribution to Provident Fund at the prescribed rates is recognised as expense and accordingly charged
Rs.36.51 Lacs (Previous Year : Rs. 32.18 Lacs) to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined Benefit Plan:
Earned Leave Benefit (EL):

Based on Actuarial Valuation of Compensated Absences amount recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss Rs.21.97 Lacs (Expense for the Previous Year : Rs. 13.76 Lacs). The liability has not been funded by the company.

Disclosures required under AS-15 are asunder:

(Rs. in Lacs)
PARTICULARS Figures as at the Figures as at the
current reporting period previous reporting period
ending on March 31,2015 | ending on March 31, 2014
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet :
Present value of obligation as at 01.04.14 89.92 76.23
Current Service Cost (21.97) 13.76
Benefit paid (0.69) (0.07)
Net (asset)/ liability recognized in
Balance Sheet 67.26 89.92
Principal Actuarial Assumption at
Balance Sheet Date :
Discount Rate 8.00% 9.20%
Annual Increase in Salary 5% 12%
Mortality table referred IALM (2006-08) IALM (2006-08)
Ultimate Ultimate
Age Withdrawal Rate (%) 4% 4%
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Gratuity:

Amount recognised as an expense in respect of gratuity Rs. 7.95 Lacs (Previous Year : Rs. 7.40 Lacs). The company
participatesin the group gratuity scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Disclosures required under AS - 15 are as under:

(Rs. in Lacs)
Sr. PARTICULARS Figures as at the Figures as at the
No. current reporting period previous reporting period

ending on March 31,2015 | ending on March 31, 2014

Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet :

Present value of Obligation (I) 37.05 26.21
Fair value of plan assets as at 31.03.2015 (ll) 39.48 25.91
Difference (I1)-(1) 2.43 (0.30)
Net asset/ (liability) recognized in Balance Sheet 2.43 (0.30)

Expenses recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss :

Current service cost 6.65 5.79
Interest on benefit obligation 2.10 1.34
Expected return on plan assets (2.88) (2.04)
Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year 2.10 2.31
Expenses recognized in P& L A/C for FY 14-15 7.95 7.40

Changes in present value of Defined
Benefit Obligations :

Present value of obligation as at 01.04.14 26.21 16.77
Interest Cost 2.10 1.34
Current service cost 6.65 5.79
Benefit paid - -
Net actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation 2.10 2.31
Present value of the defined benefit

obligation as at 31.03.15 37.05 26.21
Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets :

Fair value of plan assets as at 01.04.14 25.91 16.80
Expected return on plan assets 2.88 2.04
Contributions by employer 10.69 7.07
Benefit paid - -
Actuarial (gain) / loss - -
Fair value of plan assets as at 31.03.2015 39.48 25.91

Principal Actuarial Assumption at
Balance Sheet Date :

Discount Rate 8% 8%
Annual Increase in Salary 5% 5%
Mortality table referred LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96)
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33 Leases:

2014-2015

The company has taken some office / residential premises and warehouses on operating lease the future minimum

paymentsinrespect of which ason March 31,2015 are as follows:

Minimum Lease Payment (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Payable not later than 1 year 152.34 127.75
Payable later than 1 year not later than 5 years 420.22 306.45
Payable later than 5 years 1,373.59 844.17
Total 1,946.15 1,278.37
Lease Rental Expenses recognized in Statement
of Profit and Loss 222.48 109.89

34 Earnings per Share :

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Net Profit attributable to Shareholders (in Lacs) 5,057.71 5,410.09
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares 9,50,00,000 9,50,00,000
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) 5.32 5.69

The company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently, the basic and diluted

earnings per share of the Company remains same.

35 Details of Capital Work in Progress: (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
CNG Cascades and Dispensers 214.71 241.31
Compressors 766.10 1,180.83
Pipeline-Steel/MDPE 6,815.64 5,830.47
Permission / License fee 4,528.70 4,796.21
Interest 2,110.60 1,130.22
Others 1,674.84 283.25
Total 16,110.59 13,462.29

36 Net Dividend remitted in Foreign Exchange

Year of Remittance 2014-15 2013-14

Period to which it relates - From April 1,2013 April 1,2012
To March 31,2015 March 31,2013

Number of Non resident shareholders 1 1

Number of equity shares held on which dividend was due 8,888,889 8,888,889

Amount remitted (In USD)

Final Dividend FY 2013-14 $161,485.00 $115,533.89

Interim Dividend FY 2014-15 $105,703.00 -

Exchange Rate

Final Dividend FY 2013-14 61.65 61.55

Interim Dividend FY 2014-15 63.07 -
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37 Corporate Social Responsibility (Rs. in Lacs)
Financial Year PBT
2011-12 1,820.00
2012-13 4,992.00
2013-14 8,249.00
Average of PBT for last 3 years 5,020.00
2% of Average of PBT 100.00
CSR related expneses
Particulars 2014-15
Skill Development 30.00
PM Relief Fund 35.00
Swatch Bharat Kosh 35.00
Total 100.00

38 Comparative Figure

Previous Year's figures have been regrouped / re-classified wherever considered necessary to correspond with the

currentyear's classification / disclosure.
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VLP Training conducted by Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited

Interaction with Prospective CNG dealers
I—
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